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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies Limited (“the -
Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, the standalone statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and
standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, profit and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

—

Registered Office:

B S R & Associates (a partnership firm with Registration - 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus
No. BA69226) converted into B S R & Associates LLP Apollo Mislls Compound
(a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration N.M. Joshi Marg, Mahalakshmi

No. AAB-8182) with effect from October 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011



B S R & Associates LLP

Description of Key Audit Matters

Revenue from operations

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company has recognised revenue of
INR 55,204.05 Lacs (PY : INR 45,952.36 Lacs)

o Revenue relating to implementation services
from fixed price contracts is recognised based
on percentage of completion method which is
estimated by the Company basis the completion
of milestones and activities agreed with the
customers. Due to complexity and volume of
transactions,  significant judgements are
required to estimate percentage of completion
and determine timing of recognition of revenue.

e Identification of distinct performance obligation
and appropriateness of allocation of contract
revenues to performance obligations.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence:

e Evaluated the design and implementation of
internal controls and tested the operating
effectiveness of internal controls relating to
identification = of  distinct  performance
obligations,  determining percentage of
completion, estimation of efforts required to
complete the performance obligation and
allocation of transaction price to performance
obligations.

to test information
technology systems controls relating to
contracts and related information used in
recording and disclosing revenue.

e Involved specialists

o Selected a sample of continuing and new
contracts using a mix of quantitative and
qualitative criteria and performed the following
procedures:

— Inspecting key terms, including price,
deliverables, timetable and milestones set
out in the contract for selected sample of
contracts and identified the distinct
performance obligations.

Testing project management tool for
budgeted efforts and related percentage
completion milestones and establishing

accuracy of milestones based on
actualisation of efforts for delivered
projects.

Testing the details of activities completed
with those stated in the customer contract,
details of activities completed as provided
by the  project manager and
confirmation/acceptance of completion of
such activities by the customer.
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— Consider the terms of the contract,
standard price list of products and

services, and pricing approvals to
determine the transaction price and
allocation of transaction price to
performance obligations.

— Assess the appropriateness of

management’s revenue recognition across
revenue streams for a sample of contracts.

Trade receivables

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company has recorded trade receivables of
INR 23,684.65 Lacs (PY INR 20,392.66 Lacs)

e Significant management judgement in
determining the recoverable amount of trade
receivables as estimating the recoverable
amount involves inherent uncertainty.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence:

* Obtain an understanding of and assess the
design and implementation of
management’s key internal controls relating
to debt collection and making provision for
doubtful debts

® Assess, on a sample basis, whether jtems in
the receivables’ ageing report were
classified within the appropriate ageing
bracket by comparing individual items in
the report with underlying documentation,
which included sales invoices, proof of
delivery and customers sign offs

e Assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by the management for the provision
for doubtful debts with reference to our
understanding of the debtors’ financial
condition, the industry in which the debtors
are operating, the ageing of overdue
balances and historical and post year-end
cash receipts from the debtors and by
performing a retrospective review of the
historical accuracy of these estimates.

e Testing the accuracy and underlying data
for “expected credit loss model”

e Comparing, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade receivable
balances with bank statements and relevant
remittance documentation.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books.
-/
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The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 37 to the standalone
financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year
ended31 March 2019.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 116231 W/W-100024

Rakesh De{

Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: 15 Maj Lol8 Membership No. 092212
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(if)

(iif)

(iv)

W

(vi)

(vi)

Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Newgen Software
Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we
report that:

(a)

(b)

©

(@

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this
programme, fixed assets at certain locations were verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds and lease deeds of the immovable properties is held in
the name of the Company.

The Company is a service company, primarily engaged in the business of software product
development including designing and delivering end-to-end software solutions covering the
entire spectrum of software services from workflow automation to document management to
imaging. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories at the end of the year. Thus,
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable. ’

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, limited liability
partnerships, firms or other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, para 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans given have been complied with by the Company. There
are no loans given by the company in respect of which provisions of section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are applicable. There are no investments, guarantees and securities given in respect of
which Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1)
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the activities carried out by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income- tax,
Goods and Service tax, Duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have been
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained
to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of excise, Sales tax, Service tax and

Value added tax.
Vo
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(viii)

(ix)

*)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service tax, Duty
of customs, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of Income
tax, Goods and Service tax and Duty of customs which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. As explained above, the Company did not have
any dues on account of Duty of excise, Sales tax, Service tax and Value added tax.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans/borrowings to banks. Further, there were no dues payable to
financial institutions, government or debenture holders during the year or outstanding as at
31 March 2019.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer during the year. However
the Company had raised money by way of initial public offer during the year 2017-18.The
proceeds from IPO were Rs. 8,150 Lacs(net of issue related expenses)

Details of utilization of IPO Proceeds is as follow:

Particulars Net Proceeds Utilized upto Amount Unutilized

(in Rs Lacs) 31 March 2019 upto March 31 2019
(in Rs Lacs) (in Rs Lacs)

Purchase and 8,150.85 5169.40 2980.60

furnishing of office

premises near Noida-

Greater Noida

Expressway, Uttar

Pradesh and general

corporate expenses

Total 8,150.85 5169.40 2980.60

The Company has not raised money by way of further public offer (including debt instruments)
or term loans during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, managerial remuneration has been paid/provided by the Company in
accordance with provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, there are no transactions with the related parties which are not in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been

L
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disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required, by the applicable accounting
standards '

(xiv) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment, private
placement of shares and fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. :

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration no.: 116231W/W-100024

L

Rakesh Dewan
Place: Gurugram Partner

Date: |5 M@ o )3 Membership No.: 092212
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of Newgen
Software Technologies Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph (A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqmrements
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial staternents of Newgen
Software Technologies Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). '

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

/
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 116231 W/W-100024

Looms

Rakesh Dewan
Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: |5 Nay )9 Membership No. 092212



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current.assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Financial assets

Loans

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Income tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

- Total non-current assets

Current assets
Financial assets
Investments
Trade receivables -
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Share capital
Other equity
Securities premium
Retained earnings
Others (including items of other comprehensive income)
Total equity attributable to the owners of the Company

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Deferred income
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities
TOTAL'EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Summnary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants )
Firm Registration No.: 116231W / W-100024

L

Rakesh Dewan
Partner
Membership No.: 092212

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2019

As at

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Diwakar Nigam
Managing Director
DIN: 00263222

Place: New Dellu
Date: 15 May 2019

wﬂre chnol ies Limited

.S. V'\r:\dar'uan
Whole Time Director
DIN: 00263115

Place; New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019

(,/J 1

Arun Kumar Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019

As at
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
4 6,676.59 6,664.89
4 8,321.36 1,659.47
5 130.55 89.56
6 922.39 918.19
7 329.80 264.79
8 316.69 548.53
33 1,790.62 1,896.09
9 995.21 1,277.88
10 144.65 356.23
19,627.86 13,675.63
11 5,165.86 5,022.07
12 23,684.65 20,392.66
13 13,355.94 13,520.79
13A 2,139.40 -
14 44.63 31727 °
15 6,275.55 5,177.19
16 624.80 641.23
51,290.83 45,071.21
70,918.69 58,746.84
17 6,845.76 6,788.41
18
9,611.37 9,196.49
29.414.27 21,500.53
2,526.02 2,485.79
48,397.42 39,971.22
19 1,028.56 1,316.66
20 1,929.02 1,653.37
2,957.58 2,970.03
21 6,772.64 4,946.27
22 2,461.48 2,143.75
23 3,796.97 3,575.91
24 4,684.14 3,607.99
25 1,502.00 1,320.39
26 346.46 211.28
19,563.69 15,805.59
22,521.27 18,775.62
70,918.69 58,746.84
3

ww

Aman Mourya
Company Secretary
Membership No: 9975

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B § R & Associates LLP

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Income

Revenue from operations 27 55,204.05 45,952.36
Other income 28 2,022.86 758.19
Total income 57,226.91 46,710.55
Expenses

Employee benefits expense 29 24,873.40 22,285.86
Finance costs . 30 841.12 520.68
. Depreciation and amortisation 31 580.17 567.68
Other expenses 32 18,420.33 14,243.15
Total expenses ) 44,715.02 37,617.37
Profit before tax 12,511.89 9,093.18
Tax expense 33

Current tax 2792.96 1,613.51
Deferred tax charge (includes MAT credit entitlement) 135.85 416.58
Income tax expense ’ 2,928.81 2,030.09
Profit for the year 9,583.08 7,063.09
Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss :

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) (84.78) 126.35
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 29.63 (43.73)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (55.15) 82.62
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Debt instruments through other comprehensive income - net change in fair value (2.14) (0.47)
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss . 0.75 0.16
Net other comprehensive (loss)/i to be reclassified sub. ly to profit or loss (1.39) (0.31)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of income tax (56.54) 82.31
Total comprehensive income for the year 9,526.54 7,145.40
Profit attributable to:

Owners of the company 9,583.08 7,063.09
Profit for the year 9,583.08 7,063.09
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:

Owners of the company (56.54) 82.31
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (56.54) 82.31
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the company 9,526.54 ' 7,145.40
Total comprehensive income for the year 9,526.54 7,145.40
Earnings per equity share 35

Nominal value of share INR 10 (31 March 2018: INR 10)

Basic earning per share (INR) 14.08 11.09
Diluted eaming per share (INR) 13.82 10.81
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 116231W / W-100024

s

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited

- ﬁ//@w&(’”

Rakesh Dewan Diwakar Nigam .S.Varadarajan
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership No.: 092212 DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263115

kT oot

Arun Kumar Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Aman Mourya
Company Secretary
Membership No: 9975

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2019



Neween Software Technotogics Limited
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended 31 March 2019
~(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, wnless otherwise stated)

‘n._Share canital

Equity share capital with  Total share captial

’ Equity share capital differcntial voting right
Particulars Number Amgunt
Batance as at 31 March 2017 6.43.08.030 6.430.80 120,00 0.01 6.430.81
Add: Equity sharcs with diffcrential voting rights reclassificd 1o equity shares 120 0.01 (120.00) (0.01) -
during the year
Add: Shares issued during the vear through initial public offer 38.77.551 387.76 - - 387.76
Add: Issucd during the vear to Neween ESOP Trust 10.50.000 105.00 - - 105.00
Balance as at 31 Murch 2018 6.92,35.701 6.923.57 - - 6.923.57
Less: Shares held by trust 13.51.584 135.16 - - 135.16
Tatal Share capital as at 31 March 2018 6,78,84,117 6,788.41 - - 6,788.41
Balance as at 1 April 2018 6.92.35.701 6.923.57 - - 6.923.57
Add: Issucd during the ycar to Newgen ESOP Trust 3,50,000 35.00 - - 35.00
Balance as at 31 March 2019 6.95.85.701 6.958.57 - - 695857
Less: Shares held by trust 11.28.091 112.8) - - 112.81
+_Total Share capital as at 31 March 2019 6,84,57,610 6,845.76 - - 6,845.76
!h. Other cquity
. Securities o Others Items of Other comprehensive income Total attributable
Purticulars premium* earnings Capital Newgen ESOP Sharcoptions | Remeasurementof | o 000 to 2‘0"':" "'-"hc
redemption |General reseevd outstanding defined benefit pany
§ Trust reserve® " e throogh OCI
reserve reserve liability
Balance as at 1 April 2017 1.168.69 15.598.43 87.95 1.731.39 200.22 359.37 (34.57) 15.18 19.106.65
Total comprehensive income for the vear caded 31 March 2018 .
Profit for the year - 7,063.09 - - - - - - 7.063.09
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - - - - - - 82.62 €0.31) 82.31
Securitics premium on issue of shares to Newgen ESOP Trust 556.50 - - - - - - - 556.50
Securitics premium on shares issued through initial public offer 9,112.24 - - X - - - - - 9.112.24
Utilized for share issuc expenscs (1,349.15) - - - - - - - (1349.15)
Transactions with owners. recorded directly in equity .
Addition 1o Newgcen ESOP Trust reserve - - - - 3143 - - - 3143
Contributions by and distribistions to owners
Dividend on equity-shares - (964.62) - - - - - - {964.62)
Dividend distribution tax on dividend on equity shares - (196.37) - - - - - - {196.37)
Employee stock compensation expense - - - - - 215.64 - - 215.64
Transferred to scouritics premium account on excreise of stock options 193.21 - - - - (193.21) - - -
Adjustment on account of options issucd to subsidiarics emplovees - - - - - 10.08 - - 10.08
Balance t 31 March 2018 9.681.49 21.500.53 87.95 1.731.39] - 231.65 391.88 28.05 14.87 33.667.81
Less: Sccurities premium on shares held by trust 485.00 485.00
Balance as at 31 March 2018 9.196.49 21.500.53 87,95 1,731.39 231.65 391.88 28.05 14.87 33.182.81
Balunce as at 31 March 2018 9,681.49 21,500.53 8795 1,731.39 231.65 391.88 28.05 14.87 33,667.81
Total comprehensive income for the vear ended 31 March 2018
Profit for the ycar - 9,583.08 - - - - - - 9.583.08
Other comprelicnsive inconic/(loss) (net of tax) | - - - - - - (55.1%) (139 (56548
Sccuritics premium on issuc of shares to Newgen ESOP Trust 185.50 - - - - - - - 185.50
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in cquity
Addition to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve - - - - 26.13 - - - 26.13
Contributions by and distributions te owners -
Dividend on equity shares - (1,384.71) - - - - - - (1.384.71)
Dividend distribution tax on dividend on cquity shares - (284.63) - - - - - - (284.63)
Employce stock compensation expense - - - - - 178.25 - - 178.25
Laoss on sale of debt instrument transferred to Profit & Loss - - - - - - - 332 a3
Transferred to sccurities premium account on exercisc of stock options 110,93 - - - - (110.93) - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 997792 29,414.27 87.95 1,731.39 257.78 459.20 (27.10) 16.80 41.918.21
Less: Sceurities premium on shares held by trust 366.55 366.55
Balance as at 31 March 2019 9.611.37 29.414.27 87.95 1.731.39 257.78 459.20 27.10) 16.80 41.551.66
* Refer Note 18
Sunmary of sienificant accounting policics . Note 3

The accompanying notcs are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date atlached

For BS R & Associates LLP .
Chartered Accountants For and on bekalf of the Board of Directors of =
Finn Registration No.; 116231W / W-100024 nfum:‘TW' imited

’

N 0

Rakesh Dewan Diwzkar Nigam T.S.Yaradarajan Arun Kumar Gupta v Aman Mourva
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Dircclor Chiefl Financial Officer Company Secretary
Menibership No.: 192212 DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263115 - Membership No: 9975

Place: Gurueram Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Dethi
Date: 15 Mav 2019 Datc: 15 May 2019 Date: 15 May 2019 Date: 15 May 2019 Date: 15 Mav 2019




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amownts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

A, Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax ’
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss allowance on trade receivables
Liabilities/ provision no longer required written back
Loss allowance on other financial assets
Unrealised foreign exchange gain
Share based payment - equity settled
Finance costs
Fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL
Dividend income from mutual funds at FVTPL
Profit on sale of mutual funds (net) at FVTPL
Loss on sale of bonds at FVTOCI
Interest income on security deposits at amortised cost
Interest income from government and other bonds at FVTOCI
Interest income from bank deposits and others
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Increase in trade receivables :
Decrease / (increase) in loans
Increase in other financial assets
Decrease / (increase) in other assets
Increase in provisions
Increase in other financial liabilities
Increase in other liabilities
Increase in trade payables
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid (net)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition or construction of property plant and equipment including intangible

assets, capital work-in-progress and capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Purchase of mutual funds and bonds
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds and bonds
Interest income from bonds
Interest received on bank deposits and others
Investment in bank deposits (net)

‘Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayment of) / proceeds from short-term bosrowings (net)
(Repayment of) / proceeds of Finance Lease Obligation
Proceed from issue of shares through initial public offer_
Expenses paid for Initial Public Offer
Proceeds from issue of equity shares under ESOP scheme
Securities premium on issue of shared under ESOP scheme
Dividend paid (including corporate dividend distribution tax) - Equity
tdf
Gain on transfer of equity shares by Newgen ESOP trust
Net cash used in / generated from financing activities (C)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents: (refer note 13)
Cash in hand
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts

- balances with scheduled banks in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months

Notes:

For the year ended
31 March 2019

!
For the year ended
31 March 2018

12,511.89 9,093.18
580.17 567.68
3.89 3.15
1,573.26 462.52
(148.19) (229.75)
22.82 -
(92.08) (49.10)
174.05 215.64
788.90 520.68
(245.75) (25.48)
- (87.86)
- (60.73)
5.07 -

(28.60) (3121)
(127.46) (131.56)
(744.87) (159.32)
14,273.10 10,087.84
(4,802.79) (2,238.17)
236.23 (276.38)
(766.29) (2,686.55)
48.95 (@5.31)
326.05 314.36
273.00 1,140.88
1,255.99 792.65
465.91 659.00
11,310.15 7,748.32
(2,441.58) (2,039.14)
8,868.57 5,700.18
(7.177.34) (1,869.57)
16.48 6.96
- (1,683.12)

98.08 1,699.60
74.65 86.21
627.36 73.57
(2,160.85) (70.94)
(8,521.62) (1,757.29)
1,856.00 (259.79)
(298.76) (301.33)

- 9,500.00
- (1,349.15)

57.35 169.35
303.95 640.31
(1,667.57) (1,140.21)
(788.90) (519.60)
26.13 10.64
(511.80) 6,750.22
(164.85) 10,702.11
13,520.79 2,818.68
13,355.94 13,520.79
5.67 4.52
3,948.31 5,116.27
9.401.96 8.400.00
13,355.94 13,520.79

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"

2. Effective | April 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption of amendment did not have any material impact on the financial

statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 116231W / W-100024

N

Rakesh Dewan
Partner
Membership No.: 092212

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Newgen Software ngies Limited fp
\ L\‘

_/ "

Diwakar Nigam
Managing Director
DIN: 00263222

Arun Kumar Gupta  Aman Mourya
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: 9975

T.S.Varadarajan
Whole Time Director
DIN: 00263115

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Background

Newgen Software Technologies Limited (‘Newgen’ or ‘the Company’) is a public company domiciled and

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the

Company is situated at A-6, Satsang Vihar Marg, Qutab Institutional Area, New Delhi - 110067. The Company

raised money by way of initial public offer during the year ended 31 March 2018 and its shares were listed on
. the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) of India.

The Company is a global software Company and is engaged in the business of software product development
including designing and delivering end-to-end software solutions covering the entire spectrum of software
services from workflow automation to Document management to imaging. Newgen provides a complete range of
software that helps automate business processes. Newgen’s solutions enable document intensive organizations/
industries such as Finance and Banking, Insurance and government departments to improve productivity through
better document management and workflow implementation.

2. Basis of Preparation

A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
were the first financial statements that the Company had prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 15 May 2019.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency.-All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations

D. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about the assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to the carrying value of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

¢ Note 27 - revenue recognition from fixed price contracts of software implementation services: percentage of
completion method to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or
costs to be expended.

e Note 36 — lease classification: classification of leases under finance lease or operating lease;

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2019 is included in the following notes:

o Note 3(c)(iii) —Estimation of Useful lives of intangible and depreciable assets

¢ Note 29 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

¢ Note 33 — Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses
carried forward can be used;

¢ Note 35 —Fair value of share based payments

e Note 47(c)(ii) — Impairment of trade receivables and financial assets.

E. Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
~ cycle.
- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
- itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or
- itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other
assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with
respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility for overseeing all
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial
officer. The Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the Company assesses
the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements
of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s audit committee.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

» Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
Note 35 — Share-based payment arrangements; and

Note 47 — Financia[ instruments.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
a. Foreign currency

i. Functional currency
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional currency.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

ii. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into INR, the functional currency of the Company, at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate
at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

b. Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost;

- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — debt investment;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated

as FVTPL: :

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as

FVTPL:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or.at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management, for instance the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio, frequency, volume and timing of
sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and Interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

* contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
= prepayment and extension features; and °

Basis the above classification criteria, Company’s investments are classified as below:-

- Investments in government and other bonds have been classiﬁed as FVOCI.
- Investments in Mutual funds have been classified as FVTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in profit or loss. '

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All. amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if'it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Der ecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities '
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. '

iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and

only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

v.  Derivatives and Embedded derivatives

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair
value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is not
a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

¢. Property, plant and equipment
I. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Dep reciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
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(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are

as follows:
Category of fixed assets ‘Estimated useful life (Years)
Building : 60
Plant and equipment 15
Leasehold Improvements* 3
Office equipment** 10
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Computer hardware
- servers and networks 6
- Computers** 3-5

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Depreciation on addition (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is
ready for use (disposed off).

*Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease term of the respective property or 3 years
whichever is lower.

Leasehold land is amortised over the lease period of 90 years.

**Based on an internal technical assessment, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best
represents the period over which management expects to use its assets. Hence, the useful life of plant and
equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013.

d. Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an
intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset
to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assefs of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life (at present 3-4 years) or the tenure of the respective software license, whichever is
lower. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is
changed accordingly.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

e. Impairment

I. Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
- days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or '
- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to
‘investment grade’ e.g. BBB or higher as per renowned rating agencies.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the

historical observed default rates are updated.am --m.- ges in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss.
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii. Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment based
on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset (or cash
generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash
generating unit’s) net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised '

f. Employee benefits

i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii. Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees of the Company
and subsidiaries of the Company is recognised as an employee expense and deemed investment, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the
awards. The amount recognised as expense/deemed investment is based on the estimate of the number of awards
for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognised as an expense/dement investment is based on the number of awards that do meet the
related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-
vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions
and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.
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iii. De fined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company
makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligations
for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in
the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments
is available.

iv. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s
gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such defined benefit plans are
determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of related
obligations

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified
to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments
or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

v.  Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is
deducted.

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated
absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such
period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such
compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement.
The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the profit or loss
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g. Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.
Provisions are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. :

Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision is
based on technical evaluation, historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes by their
associated probabilities. -

Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from
the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for
an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

h. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements

i. Revenue

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue
and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect
method. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact to the financial statements of the
Company.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or
services. -

i. Sale of License

Revenue from sale of licenses for software products is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer which generally coincides with delivery of licenses to the
customers, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of software sold
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can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or managerial involvement with the
licenses transferred and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognized in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the
reporting date. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a
direct relationship between input and productivity.

Software Implementation Services

The revenue from fixed price contracts for software implementation is recognized based on proportionate
completion method based on hours expended, and foreseeable losses on the completion of contract, if any are
recognized immediately.

The Company is also involved in time and -material .contracts and recognizes revenue as the services are
performed.

Digitization services
Revenue from digitization services is recognized as services are rendered to the customer.

Annual Technical services
Revenue from annual technical service and maintenance contracts is recognised ratably over the term of the
underlying maintenance arrangement.

ii. Sale of right to use software

Software-as-a-service, that is, a right to access software functionality in a cloud-based-infrastructure provided by
the Company. Revenue from arrangements where the customer obtains a “right to access” is recognized over the
access period.

Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of license is recognized as the
performance obligations are satisfied.

Revenue is recognised, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. This inter alia involves discounting of
the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit terms. Reimbursements of
out-of-pocket expenses received from customers have been netted off with expense.

Amounts received or billed in advance of services to be performed are recorded as advance from
customers/unearned revenue. Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognized based on services performed in
advance of billing in accordance with contract terms.

iii. Mul tiple deliverable arrangements

When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement, the
Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS 115, Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with customers generally
meet the criteria for considering license for software products and related services as distinct performance
obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the revenue in respect of each
performance obligation of a contract at its relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for
an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. In cases where the .company is
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unable to determine the standalone selling price, the company uses the expected cost plus margin approach in
estimating the standalone selling price.

Arrangements to deliver software products generally have three elements license, implementation and Annual
Technical Services (ATS). The company has applied the principles under Ind AS 115 to account for revenues
from these performance obligations. When implementation services are provided in conjunction with the
licensing arrangement and the license and implementation have been identified as two separate performance
obligations, the transaction price for such contracts are allocated to each performance obligation of the contract
based on their relative standalone selling prices. In the absence of standalone selling price for implementation,
the performance obligation is estimated using the expected cost plus margin approach.

Deferred contract costs are incremental costs of obtaining a contract which are recognized as assets and
amortized over the term of the contract.

j.  Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment is
established. '

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to: -

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or -
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

k. Sale of investments

Profit on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company and is determined as the
difference between the sales price and the carrying value of the investment.

1. Leases

i. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At inception or
on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required by such
an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative
fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an
asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is
reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the incremental
borrowing rate.
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il.  Assets held under leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the
lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to similar owned assets.

Assets held under leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
(i.e. operating leases) are not recognised in the Company’s Balance Sheet.

iii. L ease payments

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

m. In come tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates
to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i.  Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction;

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting
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date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related
tax benefit will be realized:

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT”) under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current
tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised
“as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income
tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability.
MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the
aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

n. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

o. Earnings per share (“EPS”)

. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the
year but including share options, compulsory convertible preference shares except where the result would be
anti-dilutive.

p- Share Capital

Equity Shares

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares
are recognized as a deduction from equity.

Dividends

The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders, and interim
dividend are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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q. Segment
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM).

Identification of segments:

All operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors, who have been identified as the
CODM, to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. Refer note 49 for segment
information.

r. ESOP Trust

The ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by ESOP Trust are
netted off from the total share capital. Consequently, all the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the trust
are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except for profit / loss on issue of shares to the
employees and dividend received by trust which are directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

. 8. Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule I1I, unless otherwise stated.
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Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

Balance as at 01 April 2017
Additions during the year
Less: Disposals during the'year
Balance as at 31 March 2018
Additions during the year
Adjustments during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2019

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2017
Charge for the year (refer note 31)
Adjustments during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2018
Additions during the year

Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2019

Carrying amount (net)
Balance as at 31 March 2018
Balance as at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2019 properties with a carrying amount of INR 462.67 lakhs (31 March 2018 :

Intangibles

Balance as at 01 April 2017
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2018
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2019

. Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2017
Amortisation (refer note 31)
Balance as at 31 March 2018
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2019

Carrying amount (net)
Balance as at 31 March 2018
Balance as at 31 March 2019

Freehold land Leaschold land* Buildings Plant‘ and ) Leaschold Vehicles O.fﬁce Furniture and Computer and Total Capital work-in-
. machinery  improvements equipment fixtures servers progress#
4.71 3.523.68 1.103.74 238.88 5.99 135.91 348.85 242.73 857.80 6.462.29 1.108.29
- - 602.25 69.86 - 14.58 85.56 74.91 295.89 1,143.05 685.80
- - - 9.77 - - 17.07 8.78 - 35.62 134.62
4.71 3,523.68 1,705.99 298.97 5.99 150.49 417.34 308.86 1,153.69 7,569.72 1,659.47
- - - 33.37 - 94.36 23.77 2.00 399.73 553.23 6,661.89
(0.43) - 0.43 - - - (12.43) - 12.43 - -
- - - 0.97 - - 6.67 20.53 213.07 241.24 -
4.28 3,523.68 1,706.42 331.37 5.99 244.85 422.01 290.33 1,352.78 7,881.71 8,321.36
- 39.74 2024 29.87 5.99 20.73 45.20 32.38 223.99 418.14 -
- 39.46 20.96 39.78 - 24.05 67.22 44.29 276.44 512.20 -
- - - 330 - - 16.75 5.46 - 25.51 -
- 79.20 41.20 66.35 5.99 44.78 95.67 71.21 500.43 904.83 -
- 39.30 30.67 4138 - 31.65 54.34 36.70 287.11 521.15 -
- - - 0.93 - - 4.52 19.80 195.61 220.86 -
- 118.50 71.87 106.86 5.99 76.43 145.49 88.11 591.93 1,205.12 -
4.71 '3.444.48 1,664.79 232.62 - 105.71 321.67 237.65 653.26 6,664.89 1,659.47"
4.28 3,405.18 1,634.55 224.57 - 168.42 276.52 202.22 760.85 6,676.59 8,321.36 -

Computer software

129.63

74.61
204.24
100.01
304.25

59.20
55.48
114.68
59.02
173.70

89.56
130.55

INR 472.93 lakhs) are subject to first charge to working capital loans from banks.
*Represents land at Chennai and Noida location taken on finance lease for a term of 99 and 90 years respectively.
# Capital work in progress represents acquistion and further construction of office premises at Noida, Uttar Pradesh and Siruseri, Chennai wherein cost incurred upto 31 March 2019 amounting to INR 5,288.17 lakhs and INR 3,033.19 lakhs respectively.
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Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in equity instruments - at cost (unquoted)
6,000 (31 March 2018: 6,000) commonstock of USD 200 each, fully paid up of Newgen Sofiware Inc.

- USA.

1,000,000 (31 March 2018: 1,000,000) common shares of CAD 0.10 each, fully paid up of Newgen
Software Technologies Canada, Limited.

250,000 (31 March 2018: 250,000) ordinary shares of SGD 1 each, fully paid up of Newgen Software
Technologies Pte. Limited.

210,000 (31 March 2018: 210,000) equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up of Newgen Computers
Technologies Limited.

20,000,000 (31 March 2018: 20,000,000) common stock of GBP 0.01 each, fully paid up of Newgen
Software Technologies (UK) Ltd.

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments

Loans
(unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
524.71 522.52
56.52 56.40
115.92 114.12
46.50 46.50
178.74 178.65
922.39 918.19
922.39 918.19
As at Asat

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Security deposits

Non-current financial assets - others

329.80 264.79
329.80 264.79
As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Bank deposits
- pledged with tax authorities
- held as margin money*
Interest accrued on deposits
Eamest money deposits
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Less: Loss allowance for doubtful deposits

225 225
223.94 202.49
38.90 107.19
51.60 236.60
146.03 12321
(146.03) (123.21)
316.69 548.53

*Balances with bank held as margin money INR 223.94 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 202.49 lakhs) represents the margin money on account of

guarantees issued to government customers.

Information about Company's exposure to credit and market risks and fair value measurement is included in Note 47 C.

Income tax assets (net)

Advance income tax (net of provision of INR 11,415.26 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 8,622.29 lakhs)

Other non-current assets

Prepaid expenses
Capital advances

Investments

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
995.21 1,277.88
995.21 1,277.88
As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
87.99 120.50
56.66 235.73
144.65 356.23
As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Investments in bonds (unquoted)
Bonds at FVOCI
Investment in government bonds
Investment in other bonds

Investments in mutual funds (unquoted)
Mutual funds at FVTPL
vestment in debt mutual funds

Investments in bonds measured at FVOCI have stated interest rates of 7.35% to 10.40%. Information about Compan:

B I~

risks and fair value measurement is included in Note 47 C.

938.28 959.03

645.24 726.46
1,583.52 1,685.49
3,582.34 3,336.58
3,582.34 3,336.58
5,165.86 5,022.07
5,165.86 5,022.07
5,165.86 5,022.07

:erosure to credit and market
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Trade receivables As at As at
31 March 2019 31 _March 2018
Unsecured*
- Considered good 23,684.65 20,392.66
- Considered doubtful 3,621.55 4,000.87
27,306.20 24,393.53
Less: Loss allowance for trade receivables
- unsecured, considered doubtful (3,621.55) (4,000.87)
23,684.65 20,392.66
*Includes balance receivables from related parties. For Details refer note 46
The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are discussed in note 47 C.
Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash on hand 5.67 4.52
Balances with banks
- in current accounts*# 3,948.31 5,116.27
Balances with scheduled banks in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months# 9,401.96 8,400.00
13,355.94 13,520.79

*Current account balances with banks include INR 138.32 lakhs (31 March 2018; INR 112,24 lakhs) held at a foreign branch.

# Balance with banks and deposits includes INR Nil and INR 3,289.4 Lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 58.80 lakhs and INR 8,400 lakhs) respectivelyas

unutilized amounts of the IPO proceeds.

Other bank balances As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balances with scheduled banks in deposit accounts
- Maturity with in 12 months 2,139.40 -
2,139.40 -
Current financial assets - Loans As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Loans to employees* 9.90 20.03
Security deposits 34.73 297.24
44.63 317.27
*These are interest bearing loans - repayable within one year given to employees, chargeable at the rate of 12% p.a.
Current financial assets - Others As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) .
Interest accrued on deposits 117.75 0.67
Interest accrued but not due on government bonds 137.34 84.53
Unbilled revenue*
- other than related parties 6,020.46 5,079.43
- related parties - 12.56
6,275.55 5,177.19

*Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognized based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, INR 1,980.10 lakhs of unbilled revenue as of 1 April 2018 has been reclassified to trade receivables upon

billing to customers on completion of milestones.

Other current assets As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Advances to vendors 38.66 11.04
Balances with government authorities* - 137.47
Deferred contract cost 71.37 -
Advance to employees 156.19 207.91
Prepaid expenses 33544 284.81
Other current assets 17.14 -

624.80 641.23
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17 Share capital

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each 9,80,00,200 9,800.02 9,80,00,000 9,800.00
Equity share capital with differential voting rights of INR 10 each - - 200 0.02
0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each 1,19,99,800 1,199.98 1,19,99,800 1,199.98
11,00,00,000 11,000.00 11,00,00,000 11,000.00
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Issued, subscribed and paid up Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
Equity share capital of INR 10 each, fully paid up 6,92,35,701 6,923.57 6,92,35,701 6,923.57
Add: Issued during the year to Newgen ESOP Trust 3,50,000 35.00 - -
Balance 6,95,85,701 6,958.57 6,92,35,701 6,923.57
Less : Shares held by Trust 11,28.091 112.81 13,51,584 135.16
Total Share capital : 6,84,57,610 6,845.76 6,78,84,117 6,788.41
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end
at the reporting year
. As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Equity share capital of INR 10 each, fully paid up Number Amount Number Amount
of shares of shares
At the beginning of the year 6,92,35,701 6,923.57 6,43,08,030 6,430.80
Add: Equity shares with differential voting rights reclassified to equity - - 120 0.01
Add: Equity shares issued during the year through initial public 38,77,551 387.76
offer* . . .
Add: Issued during the year to Newgen ESOP Trust 3,50,000 35.00 10,50,000 105.00
At the end of the year 6,95,85,701 6,958.57 6,92,35,701 6,923.57
Less: Shares held by trust 11,28,091 112.81 13,51,584 135.16
Total equity share capital 6,84,57,610 6,845.76 6,78,84,117 6,788.41

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company completed the initial public offer (IPO), pursuant to which 17,331,483 equity shares of INR 10 each were allotted/ allocated, at an issue
price of INR 245 each, consisting of fresh issue of 3,877,551 equity shares and an offer for sale of 13,453,932 equity shares by selling shareholders. The equity shares of the Company were
listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) via ID NEWGEN and BSE Limited (BSE) via ID 540900 on 29 January 2018.

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

In case of equity shares, each equity shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend, if any. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their respective shareholding.

. As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Equity share capital with differential voting rights (DVR) of Number Amount Number Amount
INR 10 each, fully paid up of shares of shares
At the beginning of the year - - 120 0.01
Less: Re-classification to equity shares during the year - - (120) (0.01)

At the end of the year - - - -

Equity shares with differential voting rights :

Each of the shareholder with differential voting rights shall, at all times up to the conversion of Compulsory convertible preference shares into equity shares thereof, were entitled to a fixed
preferential and cumulative dividend of one-hundred percent (0.01%) of the investment amount and resolved to be so distributed as such dividend in respect of each financial year or other
accounting period of the Company, in accordance with applicable law. In addition, the Ascent DVR and the IDGV] DVR shall be entitled to participate in any distribution of the profits of the
Company (including, as regards any dividends declared) on a pro-rata share and as-if-converted basis vis-a-vis the other shareholders.

Expiration of differential rights: .

Pursuant to the shareholder subscription agreement dated 31 October 2013, each Ascent DVR and an IDGVI DVR shall be compulsorily converted at no cost to the Investors, into equity shares
in the ratio of 1.1 at any time as may be determined by the investors in their sole discretion. Upon conversion of the Ascent DVR and the IDGVI DVR , such differential voting and dividend
rights, as mentioned above, on the shares held by each of the investors have automatically expired.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 each equity share with DVR has been re-classified into equity shares.

17 A Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the
Equity shares of INR10 each, fully paid up held by:

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Number Number

of shares % Holding of shares % Holding
- Mr. Diwakar Nigam 1,84,22,406 26.47% 1,84,22,406 28.65%
- Mr. T.S. Varadarajan 1,50,09,306 21.57% 1,50,09,306 23.34%
- Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam 79,68,906 11.45% 79,68,906 12.39%
- Mrs. Usha Varadarajan 45,28,320 6.51% 45,28,320 7.04%
- Malabar India Fund Limited 45,64,262 6.56% - -

17B Shares reserved for issue under Employee stock option plan
Terms attached to stock options granted to employees are described in note 35 regarding share based payments.

17 C Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

A. Bonus shares have been issued for which no cash has been received. The bonus shares has been issued out of security premium

For the year For the year ended  For the year ended  For the year ended For the year ended
ended 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
31 March 2019
Equity shares of INR 10 each - - - - 4,39,74,000
Equity share capita! with differential voting rights of INR 10 each - - - - 100
0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each - - - - 85,78,525
ty shares have been issued under Employee stock options plans to trust for which only exercise price has been received in cash.
For the year For the year ended  For the year ended  For the year ended For the year ended
ended 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
31 March 2019 .
3,50,000 10,50,000 - - 12,45,000

B S A
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Balance as at end of the year

18  Other equity Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Securities premium 9,611.37 9,196.49
Retained eamings 29,414.27 21,500.53
Capital redemption reserve 87.95 87.95
General reserve 1,731.39 1,731.39
Newgen ESOP Trust Reserve 257.78 231.65
Share options outstanding reserve 459.20 391.88
Other comprehensive income (10.30) 42,92
41,551.66 33,182.81
As at Asat
Securities Premium (refer note (i) below) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year 9,681.49 1,168.69
Securities premiutm on issue of shares to Newgen ESOP Trust 185.50 556.50
Securities premium on shares issued through initial public offer - 9,112.24
Utilized for share issue expenses - (1,349.15)
Transferred from share options outstanding reserve on exercise of stock options 110.93 193.21
Balance as at 31 March 2019 9,977.92 9,681.49
Less: Securities premium on shares held by trust 366.55 485.00
Balance as at end of the year 9,611.37 9,196.49
As at Asat
Retained earnings (refer note (i) below) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year 21,500.53 15,598.43
Profit for the year 9,583.08 7,063.09
Dividend on equity shares (1,384.71) (964.62)
Dividend distribution tax on dividend on equity shares (284.63) (196.37)

21,500.53

) As at As at
Capital redemption reserve 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year 87.95 87.95
Balance as at end of the year 87.95 87.95
As at Asat
General reserve 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year 1,731.39 1,731.39
Balance as at end of the year 1,731.39 1,731.39
As at As at
Newgen ESOP Trust reserve (refer note (iii) below) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year 231.65 200.22
Addition to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve 26.13 31.43
Balance as at end of the year 257.78 231.65
As at As at
Share options outstanding reserve (refer note (iv) below) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year 391.88 359.37
Employee stock compensation expense 178.25 22572
Transferred to securities premium account on exercise of stock options (110.93) (193.21)
Balance as at end of the year 459.20 391.88
Other comprehensive income (refer note (v) below)
Asat Asat
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year 28.05 (54.57)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) (55.15) 82.62
Balance as at end of the year (27.10) 28.05
Asat Asat
Debt instruments through other comprehensive income 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year 14.87 15.18
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) (1.39) (0.31)
Loss on sale of debt instrument transferred to profit and loss 3.32
Balance as at end of the year 16.80 14.87

(i) Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) Accumulated balances of profits over the years after appropriations for general reserves and adjustments of dividend

(iif) The ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share capital. Consequently, all the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except for profit / loss on issue of shares to the employees and dividend received by trust
which are directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

(iv) The Company has established various equity-settled share-based payment plans for certain employees of the Company. Refer to note 35 for further details on these plans.

(v) Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for analysis of other comprehensive income, net of tax.
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Non-current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Non-current maturities of finance lease obligations (secured)*

* Finance lease obligations

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

1,028.56

1,316.66

1,028.56

1,316.66

The Company had obtained leasehold land from "Yamuna Expressway Industrial Development Authority (YEIDA)' during the yearended 31 March
2016. The lease term of leasehold land is 90 years with equated monthly payment beginning from the month subsequent to the commencement of

lease.

Finance lease obligations are payable as follows:

As at 31 March 2018

Present value of

Future minimum

Particulars minimum lease Interest
lease payments
payments
Less than one year 302.25 170.37 472.62
Between one and five years 750.26 376.43 1,126.69
More than five years 566.40 4,832.93 5,399.33

As at 31 March 2019

Present value of

Future minimum

Particulars minimum lease Interest
lease payments

payments
Less than one year 291.59 136.04 427.63
Between one and five years 459.74 288.70 748.44
More than five years 568.82 4,764.67 5,333.49
Effective interest rate on above borrowings is 11.73%.
Non-current provisions As at As at

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 29)
- provision for-gratuity
- provision for compensated absences

Current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Loans from banks
Pre-shipment loans (secured)*

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

1,495.50 1,266.07
433.52 387.30
1,929.02 1,653.37

As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

6,772.64

4,946.27

6,772.64

4,946.27

*Pre-shipment loans carry interest rate @ LIBOR plus margin which varied from 3.21% to 4.39% per annum. These are secured by first pari passu
charge over all future and present stock, book debts and equitable mortgage of land and building with carrying amount of INR 462.67 lakhs (31

March 2018: INR 472.93 lakhs) and are repayable within 180 days from the date of disbursement.

Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small
enterprises

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30-45 days
a) Refer note 38 for disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)

b) Refer note 46 for dues to related parties

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

2,461.48

2,143.75

2,461.48

2,143.75

¢) The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 47 C.
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Current financial liabilities - Others

Current maturities of finance lease obligations
Employee related payables

Payable in respect of retention money

Earnest money deposits

Payable for capital assets

Deferred income

Advance billing
Advance from customers

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
291.59 302.25
3,256.39 2,983.39
59.15 4792
1.00 1.00
188.84 241.35
3,796.97 3,57591
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
4,625.39 3,582.77
58.75 25.22
4,684.14 3,607.99

During the year ended 31 March 2019 , the Company recognized revenue of INR 3,582.77 lakhs arising from opening advance billing as of 1 April 2018.

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable
Advance from employees for share options
Other current liabilities

Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 29)
- provision for gratuity
- provision for compensated absences

Gv;ugram =
v

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1,494.24 1,313.63
2.82 6.76
4.94 -
1,502.00 1,320.39
As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

244.76 141.39
101.70 69.89
346.46 211.28
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Revenue from operations For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Sale of products - softwares 13,889.67 12,996.88
Sale of services .

- Implementation - 12,874.07 11,768.53

- Scanning 1,936.25 1,950.01

- AMC/ATS 10,017.22 793491

- Support 14,778.33 10,268.75

- SaaS revenue 1,708.51 1,033.28

55,204.05 45,952.36

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the
reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given
in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where :

(i) The performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less.

(ii) The revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts
where invoicing is on time and material basis.

Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of
contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at 31 March 2019, other than those meeting the
exclusion criteria mentioned above is INR Nil.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Other income

Interest income under the effective interest rate method:

- on security deposits at amortised cost ’ 28.60 31.21
- government and other bonds at FVOCI 127.46 131.56
Interest income on fixed deposits 676.15 159.32
Other interest income 68.72 1.10
Profit on sale of mutual funds (net) at FVTPL - 60.73
Dividend income from mutual funds at FVTPL ’ - 87.86
Fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL 245.75 25.48
Liabilities / provision no longer required written back 148.19 229.75
Net foreign exchange fluctuation gain 706.14 -
Bad debt recovered 15.04 -
Miscellaneous income ' 6.81 31.18
2,022.86 758.19
Employee benefits expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 22,836.06 20,434.76
Contribution to provident funds (refer note i below) 767.10 672.31
Expenses related to compensated absences (refer note ii below) 275.35 244.17
Share based payment - equity settled 174.05 215.64
Expense related to defined benefit plan (refer note iii below) 311.88 272.39
Staff welfare expenses 508.96 446.59
24,873.40 22,285.86

(i) Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of the employee salaries in respect of qualifying employees towards
provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to provident fund for the year
aggregated to INR 767.10 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 672.31 lakhs). The amount recognised as an expense towards employee state insurance
aggregated to INR 2.27 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 3.52 lakhs).

(ii) Compensated absences:
The Principal assumptions used in determining the compensated absences benefit obligation are as given below:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discounting rate (p.a.) 7.66% 7.80%
Future salary increase ( p.a.) 7.00% 7.00%

(iii) Defined Benefit Plan:
Gratuity scheme - This is an unfunded defined benefit plan and it entitles an employee, who has rendered atleast 5 years of continuous service, to
receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed service at the time of retirement/exit.

i) Qn normal retirement / early retirement / withdrawal / resignation: As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with vesting period of

eay limit on gratuity amount
SZ ecent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at 31 March
e present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected

it " ‘>/~ Af %\)\\/\
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A. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its

components

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,407.46 1,278.47
-Benefits paid (71.28) (62.57)
Current service cost 202.10 178.42
Interest cost 109.78 93.97
Past service gain - -
Acturial (gains) losses recognised in OCI

change in demographic assumptions 21.21 (6.31)

change in financial assumptions 22.48 (44.89)

experience adjustments 48.51 (29.64)
Balance at the end of the year 1,740.26 1,407.46
B. i) Expense recognised in profit and loss
Particulars * For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Current service cost 202.10 178.42
Interest cost 109.78 93.97
Past service gain - -
Total expense recognised in profit and loss 311.88 272.39

ii) Remeasurements recoginsed in other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Acturial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation 92.20 (80.84)
Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 92.20 (80.84)
C. Defined benefit obligations
i. Actnarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discount rate 7.66 7.80
Salary escalation rate 7.00 7.00
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 100% of IALM

(2006 - 08) (2006 - 08)
ii. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.50% movement) (54.53) 58.07 (63.05) 68.33
Future salary growth (0.50% movement) 58.16 (55.10) 68.53 (63.79)

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not
applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown. : :

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company's financial statements as at balance sheet date:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Net defined benefit asset - -
Total employee benefit asset - -
Net defined benefit liability i
Liability for gratuity 1,740.26 1,407.46
Liability for compensated absences 535.22 457.19
Total employee benefit liabilities 2,275.48 1,864.65
Non-current:
Gratuity 1,495.50 1,266.07
Compensated absences 433.52 387.30
Current:
Gratuity 244.76 141.39
Compensated absences 101.70 69.89

Finance costs For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Finance cost on finance lease obligations 166.99 205.49
Interest expense on packing credit 561.23 1 236.16
Other finance costs 112.90 79.03
841.12 520.68 .

4G D
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Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5)

Other expenses

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional fees

Outsourced technical services expense

Cloud hosting services

Payment to auditors*

Electricity and water

Advertising and sales promotion

Membership and subscription fee

Brokerage and commission

Communication costs

Software and license maintenance
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility
Donation

Operation and maintenance

Printing and stationery

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss allowance on trade receivables

(net of adjustment for bad debts written off of INR 1,952.57 lakhs (previous year INR 2,449.59 lakhs)

Loss allowance on other financial assets
Security charges

Net foreign exchange fluctuation loss
Loss on settlement of forward contract
Loss on sale of bonds (net) at FVOCI
Miscellaneous expenses

“*Payment to Auditors

As auditor:

- Statutory audit fee

- Limited review fee

- Others

- Reimbursement of expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
521.15 512.20
59.02 55.48
580.17 567.68
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 ‘31 March 2018
1,632.93 1,514.62
283.16 308.81
211.73 144.77
6,187.49 5,462.40
2,099.79 1,771.97
1,009.80 74.23
426.22 231.77
69.67 61.18
354.17 329.93
504.76 358.19
274.56 273.90
695.72 605.53
399.46 365.95
49938 305.58
125.64 107.31
34.74 32.00
530.20 490.77
671.87 632.06
3.89 3.15
1,573.26 462.52
22.82 -
229.03 200.79
- 1.95
36.30 -
5.07 -
538.67 503.77
18,420.33 14,243.15
39.50 40.00
22.50 7.50 -
3.40 11.43
4.27 2.25
69.67 61.18
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Income Tax

A. The major components of income tax (expense) / income are recognised in profit or loss

Tax expense

MAT credit entitlement

Tax expense for earlier years
Deferred tax (credit)

Total

Recognised in Other comprehensive income

Tax impact on

- Re-measurement on defined benefit plan

- Fair value of Debt instruments through other comprehensive income
Total

B. Reconciliation of effective fax rate

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

2,682.78 1,549.01

- (86.97)

110.19 64.50

135.85 503.55

2,928.82 2,030.10
29.63 (43.73)

0.75 0.16
30.38 (43.57)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

[ oy
+ \efﬂ”’e
3

Profit before tax 12,511.89 9,093,18
Tax using the Company's tax rate 34.94% 4,372.16 34.61% 3,049.64
Effect of deduction under section 10AA of the Income tax Act, 1961 -12.41% (1,552.64) -11.57% (1,052.22)
Effect of expenses permanently disallowed under the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.14% 17.50 0.19% 16.89
Effect of income exempt/ taxed on lower rate -0.19% (23.27) -0.58% (53.04)
Others 0.04% 488 0.04% 3.36
Income tax recopnised in statement of profit and loss for the current year 22.53% 2,818.63 21.62% 1,965.59
C. Deferre.d t;lx assets (net)
Deferred tax relates to the following: As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI:
Deferred tax assets (gross)
Investments at fair value through OCI - -
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) 14.21 -
(a) 14.21 -
Deferred tax liabilities
Investments at fair value through OCI 7.12 7.87
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) - 15.42
(b) 7.12 23.29
Deferred tax related to items recognised in statement of profit and loss:
Deferred tax liabilities (gross)
Property, plant and equipment 308.29 251.36
Others 84.54 11.11
(c) 392.83 262.47
Deferred tax assets (gross)
Loss allowance on other financial assets 51.03 42.63
Loss allowance on trade receivables 1,265.52 1,384.62
Provision for employee benefits 772.84 667.62
() 2,089.39 2,094.87
(e)=(d) - (c) 1,696.56 1,832.40
Deferred tax assets (net) (e)+ (a) - (b) 1,703.65 1,809.12
MAT credit entitlement 86.97 86.97
Total Deferred tax assets (net) 1,790.62 1,896.09
D. Movement in temporary differences
31 March 2019
Particulars Balance as at i?rti:fli(]r;:gpg“ Recoggllsrei(lll;n od Balance as at
31 March 2018 2018-19 FY 2018.19 31 March 2019
Investments at fair value through OCI (7.87) - 0.75 (7.12)
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) (15.42) - 29.63 14.21
Property, plant and equipment (251.36) (56.93) - (308.29)
Loss allowance on other financial assets 42.63 8.40 - 51.03
Loss allowance on trade receivables 1,384.62 (119.10) - 1,265.52
Provision for employee benefits 667.62 105.22 - 772.84
Others (11.10) (73.43) - (84.54)
Total 1,809.11 (135.85) 30.38 1,703.65
31 March 2018 4
31 March 2017 2017-18 FY 2017.18 31 March 2018
vestments at fair value through OCI o nn (8.03) - (0.16) (7.87)
easurement of defined benefit liability (asset %o/, o 2831 - 43.73 (15.42)
Boperty, plant and equipment . & AR (314.72) 63.36 - (251.36)
s llowance on other financial assets g d‘; ! 42.64 0.01) - 42.63
s pllowance on trade receivables > = 2,068.39 (683.77) - 1,384.62
Proyision for employee benefits (% 5 530.78 136.84 - 667.62
Otliers . < 8.87 (19.97) - (11.10)
Total N\ /ﬁ\./ X/ 2,356.24 (503.55) R 4&5:1 N 1,809.12
NE X
NG 75 D T NN
L /
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34

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equxty shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares

into equity shares.

i. Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company for basic and diluted earnings

ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Opening balance of equity's shares

Effect of equity shares issued through initial public offer

Effect of share options exercised

Weighted average number of shares for basic EPS

Effect of dilution:

Add: Equity shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust with respect to options not exercised by
employees but outstanding

Weighted average number of shares for diluted EPS

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

f)iluted earnings per share

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
9,583.08 7,063.09
- 9,583.08 7,063.09
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
6,78,84,117 6,23,13,086
- 6,58,652
1,91,325 7.39,355
6,80,75,442 6,37,11,093
12,55,390 16,33,736
6,93,30,832 6,53,44,829

31 March 2019
INR

31 March 2018
INR

14.08
13.82

11.09
10.81

(KW
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35 Share-based payment arrangements:
A. Description of share-based payment arrangements
i. Share option programmes (equity-settled)

The Company had established Employees Stock Option Plan-1999 (ESOP 1999) and Employees Stock Option Plan-2000 (ESOP 2000) in the year 1999-00 and 2000-01 respectively,

d th gen Employees Trust” (ESOP Trust) set-up for this purpose, for a total grant of 293,160 and 600,000 options respectively, at an Exercise Price of INR 80 and INR
40 per option respectively, to the employees of the Company. Under the terms of the original plans, these options are vested on a graded vesting basis over a maximum period of Four (4)
years from the date of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or full, within a maximum period of five and four years respectively from the date of last vesting. During the year ended
31 March 2000, 586,320 equity shares were issued to ESOP Trust as bonus shares in the ratio of 1:2. Further, 4,093,350 equity shares were also issued to ESOP Trust as bonus shares in the
ratio of 1:5 during the year ended 31 March 2015,

h ‘N
&

The Board of Directors of the Company time to time extended the maximum exercise period for ESOP 1999 and ESOP 2000. During the year 2014-15, the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting dated 24 December 2014 extended the maximum exercise period for ESOP 1999 and ESOP 2000 to five years and four year respectively from the last vesting date
or 31 December 2018, whichever is later.

The Company established Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) in the year 2014-15, administered through a new Trust 'Newgen ESOP Trust'. The
maximum numbers of grants under this Scheme shall be limited to 3,783,800 option with underlying equity shares of the Company. Pursuant to the scheme, during the year 2014-15, the
Company has granted 3,653,525 options at an exercise price of INR 63 per option, to the employees of the Company. Under the terms of the plans, these options are vested on a graded
vesting basis over a maximum period of four years from the date of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or full, within a maximum period of five from the date of last vesting.
Further, during the year 2017-18 grant of options 353,000, 130,000, and 79,250 through grant II, Il and IV on 1 Jul 2017, 1 Sep 2017 and 1 Oct 2017 respectively under the same scheme
and with same vesting conditions was made.

The ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share capital. Consequently, all the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except for profit / loss on issue of shares to the employees and dividend
received by trust which are directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

Following table represents general terms of the grants for the ESOP outstarding as on 31 March 2019, during the year 2018-19 there were no grants made.

ESOP schemes Grant Date No. of Options | Exercise Price | Weighted average Vesting Period
Outstanding remaining life

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Jan-2015 11,00,564 INR 63. 4.76 |4 years

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Jul-2017 2,76,235 INR 63. 7.25 |4 years

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Sep-2017 1,26.500 INR 63. 7.42 |4 years

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Oct-2017 54,225 INR 63. 7.51 [4 years

B. Measurement of fair values

i. Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes formula. Service and non-market performance conditions attached to the arrangements
were not taken into account in measuring fair value.

The requirement that the employee has to remain in service in order to purchase shares under the share purchase plan has been incorporated into the fair value at grant date by
applying a discount to the valuation obtained.

The fair value of o;'m'ons and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment plans are as follows:

Particulars Newgen Employees | Newgen Employees
Stock Option Stock Option
Scheme 2014 Scheme 2014
(Newgen ESOP (Newgen ESOP
No Grant Grant IL, ITl and 1V

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Fair value of options at grant date - 100.23
Share price at grant date - 134.53
Exercise price - 63.00
Expected volatility (weighted-average) - 55.59%
Expected life (weighted-average) - 9 years
Expected dividends - 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) - 6.78%
C. Reconciliation of outstanding share options
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share option programmes were as follows.
Employces Stock Option Plan-1999 (ESOP 1999) Number of Weighted Number of options Weighted average
options average exercise price

exercise price

31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year - - 52,600 INR 4.45
Add: Options granted during the year - - - -
Less: Options lapsed during the year - - - -
Less: Options exercised during the year - - 52,600 INR 4.45
Options outstanding as at the year end - - - INR 4.45
Exercisable as at year end - -
Weighted - average contractual life - -
Pf)ﬁﬂﬂtry Stock Option Plan-2000 (ESOP 2000) Number of Weighted Number of options Weighted average
options average exercise price

31 March 2019

exercise price
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2018

ding as at the beginning of the year - - 3,86,700 INR 6.67
Add: Op/o is granted during the year - - - -
-Options lapsed during the year - - - -
Less: Options exercised during the year - - 3,86,700 INR 6.67
Options outstanding as at the year end - - INR 6.67

Exercisable as at year end
Weighted - average contractual life

TN
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Newgen Employces Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) Number of Weighted Number of options Weighted average

options average exercise price
31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2018

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year 22,43,483 INR 63.00 30,61,209 INR 63.00
Add: Options granted during the year - - 5,62,550 INR 63.00
Less: Options lapsed during the year 1,12,466 INR 63.00 1,26,096 INR 63.00
Less: Options exercised during the year 5,73,493 INR 63.00 12,54,180 INR 63.00
Options outstanding as at the year end 15,57,524 INR 63.00 22,43,483 INR 63.00
Exercisable as at year end 11,22,797 4,45,616

Weighted - average contractual life 5.51 years 6.38 years

C. Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

For details on the employee benefits expense, refer note 29
36 Operating leases
A. Leases as lessee

a) The Company has taken various cancellable and non-cancellable leases for office premises and residential accommodation for some of its employees. The amount recognised in
statement of profit and loss and future minimum lease payments and payment profile of non-cancellable operating leases are as under:

i. Future minimum lease payments
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases were as follows.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Less than one year 750.95 1,150.13
Between one and five years 981.57 1,732.52
More than five years

1,732.52 2,882.65

ii. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1,632.93 1,514.62
1,632.93 1,514.62

Lease expense
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37 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)*

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for net of advances, tangible assets** 23.45 759.70
b. Amount of Income tax expense for financial year 2015-16 for which assessment has been completed and against which company has filed 179.00 -

an appeal.

* The Company is committed to operationally, technically and financially support the operations of its certain subsidiary companies.
** For other commitments — Non-cancellable operating and finance leases, refer Note 36 and 20 respectively

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was a judicial pronouncement with respect to provident fund. It is not currently clear whether the interpretation set out in the pronouncement
has retrospective application. If applied retrospectively, the interpretation would result in an increase in contributions payable by the Company for past and future periods for certain of its
employees. There are numerous interpretative challenges concering the retrospective application of the judgment. Due to such challenges and a lack of interpretive guidance, and based
on legal advice the Company has obtained on the matter, it is currently impracticable to reliably estimate the timing and amount of any payments the Company may be required to make.
Pending further clarity on the subject, the Company has made a provision of Rs 9.65 lakhs for the period subsequent to the date of judgment.

38 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention
in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts
payable to such enterprises as on 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Based on
the information currently available with the Company, there are no dues payable to Micro and Small Suppliers as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006.

39 After the reporting date the following dividend were proposed by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of shareholders at Annual General Meeting; Accordingly, the dividends

have not been recognised as liabilities. Dividends would attract corporate dividend tax when declared.

Particulars For the vear ended | For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Final dividend of INR 3.00 per share (31 March 2018: INR 2/-) 2,087.57 1,384.71

Corporate dividend tax 429.20 283.94

40 Utilization of CSR expenscs

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the following is the detail of corporate social responsibility expenses incurred by the Company: Gross amount to be spent by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2019 is INR 125.38 lakhs (previous year INR. 106.13 lakhs). Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2019:

Total
:125.64

Particulars
i) For purpose mentioned as under

Amount already spent| Amount to be spent
124.90 0.74

The areas for CSR activities are promoting education, health care, sanitation, digital literacy and livelihood enhancement and participation on SOS Children's Village Projects in
Faridabad. The funds were primarily utilized through the year on the following activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

41 The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-

tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company has got the updated documentation for the
international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the holding company has also started availing
services from its overseas subsidiaries in accordance with the transfer pricing methodology under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The management is of the opinion that its
international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of
provision for taxation.

42 During the previous year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has completed the Initial Public offer, pursuant to which 17,331,483 equity shares having a face value of INR 10 each were

allotted/allocated, at an issue price of INR 245 per equity share, consisting of fresh issue of 3,877,551 equity shares and an offer for sale of 13,453,932 equity shares by selling
shareholders. The gross proceeds of fresh issue of equity shares from IPO amounted to INR 9,500.00 lakhs. The Company's share of fresh issue related expenses was INR 1,349.15 lakhs,
which had been adjusted against Securities Premium. As at 31 March 2018, the proceeds were unutilised and had been temporarily invested/ deposited in cash and cash equivalents
including fixed deposits and bank account (Refer note 13). .

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the proceeds were partially utilised for the purchase of unfurnished office premises near Noida-Greater Noida Expressway, Uttar Pradesh and for
general corporate purpose amounting to INR 5,145.00 lakhs (Refer note 4) and INR 24.40 lakhs respectively. As at 31 March 2019, the remaining proceeds has been temporarily
invested/ deposited in cash and cash equivalents including fixed deposits and bank account (Refer note 13).

43 For the year ended 31 March 2019, projected utilisation of IPO proceeds was INR 6,950.40 lakhs, however the Company has utilised only INR 5,169.40 lakhs. The Board of Directors in

their meeting held on 15 May 2019, approved to seek the approval of shareholders through Postal Ballot for variation/deviation in the utilisation of IPO proceeds amounting to INR
1,781.00 lakhs.

44 Dividend remittances in foreign currency:

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year
31 March 2019

Particulars

Year to which the dividend relates 2017-18 2016-17
Amount remitted during the year (INR in lakhs) - 77.21
Number of non-resident shareholders - 2
Number of shares on which dividend was due - 51.47.340
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45 Details of current Investments (refer note 11)

Particulars Number of unifs Amount in lakhs
as at as at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Investment in debt mutual funds -FVTPL
Reliance Short Termn Fund- Direct Growth Plan 6,34,842 6,34,842 228.91 213.85
ICICI Prudential Short Term Plan Direct Growth 8,60,077 8,60,077 346.96 322.56
IIFL Dynamic Bond Fund Reg- Growth 14,42,783 14,42,783 212.99 200.83
Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Retail Plan - Growth-Direct 11,122 11,122 466.63 425.20
Aditya Birla Sun Life Credit Risk Fund- Gr. Direct 32,02,906 32,02,906 454.78 426.14
ICICI Prudential Credit Risk Fund -Direct Plan- Growth 21,85,596 21,85,596 459.30 425.63
UTI Credit Risk Fund- DirectPlan- Growth 26,17,879 26,17,879 471.48 442,00
Kotak Income Opportunities Fund- Monthly Growth 21,94,751 21,94,751 472.75 440.56
L and T Credit Risk Fund Direct Plan -Growth 21,57,674 21,57,674 468.53 439.81
Investment in government bonds-FVTOCI
8.40% IRFC 15YRS SR2A 18022029 (18-Feb-2029) 40,000 40,000 T 45566 466.42
7.35% NHAI LTD Tax free Bond 15YRS SR2A Annual (11-Jan-2031) 45,000 45,000 482.62 492.61
Investment in Other Bonds-FCTOCI
1IFL Wealth Finance Limited SR-A1-June2022 LOA 13JU22 FVRS10LAC 20 20 242.95 220.42
11% Bank of India Perpetual Bond - 10 - 99.83
Vijaya Bank SR-1I 10.4 LOA Perpetual FVRS10LAC (27-Mar-2050) 40 40 402.30 406.21

5,165.86 5,022.07
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46 Related party transactions

A. List of subsidiaries

Set out below is the list of subsidiaries:

Country of Ownership interest
Name of the company incorporation 31 March 2019 ___ 31 March 2018
Newgen Software Inc. United States of America 100% 100%
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd. Singapore 100% 100%
Newgen Software Canada Ltd. Canada 100% 100%
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. United Kingdom 100% 100%
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited India 100% 100%

The principal place of business of all the entities listed above is the same as the respective country of incorporation.
B. Transactions with Key Management Personnel

A number of key management personnel, or their related parties hold positions in other entities that result in them having contro! or significant
influence over those entities. .

Compensation of the Company's key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post - employment defined benefit
plan(see note 29)

Executive officers also participate in the Company’s share option plan as per the conditions laid down in that scheme (see note 29 and note 35).

List of key management personnel and their relatives

Diwakar Nigam - Managing Director

T.S. Varadarajan - Whole Time Director

Priyadarshini Nigam - Whole Time Director

Arun Kumar Gupta - Chief Financial Officer

Virender Jeet - Senior Vice President (Sales and Marketing/Product)
Surender Jeet Raj - Senior Vice President (HR/Operations)

Tarun Nandwani - Senior Vice President (Business Management)

Usha Varadarajan - Relative of Whole Time Director - T.S. Varadarajan
Shubhi Nigam - Relative of Managing Director

Aman Mourya- Company Secretary

Key management personnel compensation

Transaction value Balance payable
For the year ended For the year ended As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Salaries, wages and bonus* 959.18 768.60 348.95 262.12
Diwakar Nigam ) 174.90 160.35 8.42 8.24
T.S. Varadarajan 83.70 76.32 6.06 4.53
Priyadarshini Nigam 40.84 39.28 - 2.79
Arun Kumar Gupta 116.13 75.88 37.87 26.93
Virender Jeet : 187.03 150.19 112.47 82.59
Surender Jeet Raj 166.52 134.22 96.86 70.59
Tarun Nandwani 176.18 121.41 86.40 65.72
Shubhi Nigam - 0.87 - -
Aman Mourya 13.88 10.08 0.87 0.73

Dividend paid (excluding dividend distribution )

tax) 933.99 699.32 - -
Diwakar Nigam 368.45 276.34 . - -
T.S. Varadarajan 300.19 225.14 - -
Priyadarshini Nigam 159.38 119.53 - -
Arun Kumar Gupta 1.09 0.66 - -
Virender Jeet 4.98 3.24 - -
Surender Jeet Raj 4.55 3.16 - -
Tarun Nandwani 4.77 . 333 - -
Usha Varadarajan 90.57 67.92 - -
Aman Mourya 0.01 .-

Share-based payments 57.17 50.46 - -
Arun Kumar Gupta 30.18 7.51 - -
Virender Jeet - 16.33 - -
Surender Jeet Raj : - 14.82 - -
Tarun Nandwani 26.12 11.80 - -
Aman Mourya 0.87 -

dampensated absences, as these are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for the Company as a whole and

2>
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C. Related party transactions other than those with key management personnel

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the
year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash,

For the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by
related parties. This assessment is undertaken at each reporting period.

Transaction value Balance receivable

For the year ended For the year ended As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Sale of products and services
Subsidiaries
Newgen Software Inc., USA 10,555.33 6,393.04 2,631.96 2,218.41
Newgen Singapore 1,821.08 843.77 584.41 165.90
Newgen Software Canada Ltd. 675.27 597.99 251.43 424.85
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 793.44 52.09 560.49 53.15
Expense-Outsourced technical services
Subsidiaries
Newgen Software Inc., USA 566.26 - 566.26 -
Newgen Singapore 45.82 - 45.82 -
Rent expense
Subsidiary
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 7.20 7.20 - 0.54
Paid on behalf of
Subsidiary
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 0.95 0.65 - -
Recovered from
Subsidiary
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 0.95 0.65 - -
Investment in subsidiaries - share based payment
Newgen Software Inc., USA 220 7.17 - -
Newgen Singapore 1.79 2.15 - -
Newgen Software Canada Ltd. 0.12 0.54 - -
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 0.09 0.23 - -
D. Investment in subsidiaries
As at As at
Subsidiary Company 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Newgen Software Inc. USA 524.71 522.52
Newgen Software Technologies Canada, Ltd. 56.52 56.40
Newgen Software Technologies Pte. Ltd. 115.92 114.12
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 46.50 46.50
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 178.74 178.65
' 922.39 918.19
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47 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hirarchy.

Carrying amount Fair value
31 March 2019 Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value : .
Investments in debt mutual funds 11 3,582.34 - - 3,582.34 3,582.34 - - 3,582.34
Investments in bonds 11 - 1,583.52 - 1,583.52 1,583.52 - - 1,583.52
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other non-current financial asset 8 - - 316.69 316.69 - - - -
Trade receivables 12 - - 23,684.65 23,684.65 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - - 13,355.94 13,355.94 - - - -
Other bank balances 13A - - 2,139.40 2,139.40
Loans 7 and 14 - - 37443 374.43 - - - -
Other financial assets 15 - - 6.275.55 6,275.55 - - . - -
3,582.34 1,583.52 46,146.66 51,312.52 5,165.86 - - 5,165.86
Financial liabilities
Financial laibilities not measured at fair value
Long-term maturities of finance lease obligations (secured) 19 - - 1,028.56 1,028.56 - 1,028.56 - 1,028.56
Short term borrowings 21 - - 6,772.64 6,772.64 - 6,772.64 - 6,772.64
Trade payables 22 - - 2,461.48 2,461.48 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 23 - - 3,796.97 3,796.97 - 291.59 - 291.59
- - 14,059.65 14,059.65 - 8,092.79 - 8.092.79
Carrying amount Fair value
31 March 2018 Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost  Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in debt mutual funds 11 3,336.58 - - 3,336.58 3,336.58 - - 3,336.58
Investments in bonds 11 - 1,685.49 - 1,685.49 1,685.49 - - 1,685.49
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other non-current financial asset 8 - - 548.53 548.53 - - - -
Trade receivables : 12 - - 20,392.66 20,392.66 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - - 13,520.79 13,520.79 - - - -
Other bank balances 13A - - - -
Loans 7 and 14 - - 582.06 582.06 - - - -
Other financial assets, & ASSoq 15 - - 5,177.19 5,177.19 - - - -
3,336.58 1,685.49 40,221.23 45,243.30 5,022.07 - - 5,022.07
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Carrying amount Fair value

31 March 2018 Note FVTPL - FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value -
Long-term maturities of finance lease obligations (secured) 19 - 1,316.66 1,316.66 1,316.66 - 1,316.66
Short term borrowings : 21 - 4,946.27 4,946.27 4,946.27 - 4.946.27
Trade payables 22 - 2,143.75 2,143.75 - - -
Other financial liabilities 23 - 3,57591 3,575.91 302.25 - 302.25

- 11,982.59 11,982.59 6,565.18 - 6,565.18

The fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other current financial assets, current borrowings, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts, due to
their short-term nature. Fair value of bank deposits included in non-current other financial assets are equivalent to their carrying amount, as the interest rate on them is equivalent to market rate.

B. Measurement of fair values

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurementdarectly or indirectly observable inputs
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

Particulars Fair value |Valuation technique Significant Inter-relationship between
hierarchy unobservable unobservable inputs and fair vale
inputs measurement
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Investments in debt mutual funds Level 1 Market valuation technique: Investmentstraded in active markets are determined by reference}Not applicable Not applicable
to auotes from the financial institutions: for example: Net asset value
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Investments in bonds Level 1 Market valuation technique: The fair value of bonds is based on direct and market observabl¢Not applicable Not applicable
inputs.
Financial liabilities measured at Amortised cost
Long term borrowings Level 2 Discounted cash flow: The valuation model considers the present value of expected paymengNot applicable Not applicable
Short term borrowings Level 2 discounted using a risk adjusted discount rate

There have been no transfers in either direction for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
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C. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

i. Risk management framework

The Company’sboard of directors has framed a Risk Management Policy and plan for enabling the Company to identify elements of risk as contemplated by the provisions
of the Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and " procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company'saudit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy
of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

if. Credit risk .

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises partially
from the Company's receivables from customers, loans and investment in debt securities. The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk
exposure. The Company has credit policies in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting was:

Particulars ’ As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Trade receivables 23,684.65 20,392.66
Loans 374.43 582.06
Cash and cash equivalents ) 13,355.94 13,520.79
Other bank balances 2,139.40 -
39,554.42 34,495.51

To cater to the credit risk for investments in mutual funds and bonds, only high rated mutual funds/bonds are accepted.

The Company has given security deposits to vendors for rental deposits for office properties, securing services from them, government departments. The Company does not
expect any default from these parties and accordingly the risk of default is negligible or nil.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenues are typically unsecured and derived from revenue earned from customers primarily located in India, USA, EMEA and APAC.

Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approval, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit term in normal course of business. Credit limits are established for each customers and received quarterly. Any sales/services exceeding
these limits require approval from the risk management committee.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its-expected credit losses in respect of trade receivables. The management uses a simplified approach
for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit
characteristics, including whether they are an individual or legal entity, industry and existence of previous financial difficulties, if any.

Trade and other receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The management establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows
Carrying amount

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
India : 9,300.31 7,994.27
USA 2,887.04 2,643.93
EMEA 8,540.51 7,946.49
APAC 2,956.79 1,807.97
23,684.65 20,392.66
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The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables from individual customers:

As at 31 March 2019

Gross carrying amount

Weighted- average loss

Loss allowance

Credit-impaired

rate
0-3 months past due 19,141.89 2.81% 536.95 No
3-6 months past due 966.96 9.78% 94.59 No
6-9 months past due 725.46 18.30% 132.79 No
9-12 months past due 569.91 28.02% 159.69 No
12-15 months past due 3,328.71 36.95% 1,230.10 No
15-18 months past due 1,122.21 40.93% 459.37 No
18-21 months past due 493.31 50.40% 248.63 No
21-24 months past due 268.75 59.96% 161.15 No
above 24 months past due 689.00 86.83% 598.28 No
27,306.20 3,621.55

As at 31 March 2018

Gross carrying amount

Weighted- average loss

Loss allowance

Credit-impaired

rate
0-3 months past due 16,452.48 4.11% 676.50 No
3-6 months past due 3,053.35 12.90% 393.77 No
6-9 months past due 1,197.55 21.62% 258.95 No
9-12 months past due 381.15 34.90% 133.02 No
12-15 months past due 389.65 42.90% 167.15 No
15-18 months past due 328.23 47.89% 157.20 No
18-21 months past due 170.55 52.45% 89.45 No
21-24 months past due 269.15 61.10% 164.46 No
above 24 months past due 2,151.41 91.12% 1,960.37 No
24,393.52 4,000.87

Movement in allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables

Impairment in trade

receivables

Balance as at 01 April 2017

Impairment loss recognised
Amounts written off

Balance as at 31 March 2018

Impairment loss recognised
Amounts written off

Balance as at 31 March 2019

5,976.64
462.52
2.438.29

4,000.87
1,573.26
1.952.58

3.621.55

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward

looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Debt securities

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities and only with counterparties that have a credit rating A to AA+ from renowned

rating agencies."

The Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ratings. For its investment in bonds, Company also reviews changes in government bond
yields together with available press and regulatory information about issuers

The exposure to credit risk for debt securities at FVTOCI and at FVTPL is as follows:-

Net carrying amount

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
India 5,165.86 5,022.07
Other regions - -
5,165.86 5,022.07

Basis experienced credit judgement, no risk of loss is indicative on Company's investment in mutual funds and government bonds.

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 13,356.03 lakhs at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: INR 13,520.79 lakhs) and other bank balances of INR 2,139.40
takhs as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: Nil). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated AA- to AA+,

based on renowned rating agencies.
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation.

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity include cash and bank balances, deposits, undrawn borrowings and cash flow from operating activities. As at 31 March 2019,
the Company had a working capital of INR 31727.13 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 29,265.58 lakhs) including cash and cash equivalent of INR 13,355.94 lakhs (31 March
2018: INR 13,520.79 lakhs), other bank balances of INR 2,139.40 lakhs ( 31 March 2018: Nil) and current investments of INR 5,165.86 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR
5,014.54 lakhs).

Consequently, the Company believes its revenue, along with proceeds from financing activities will continue to provide the necessary funds to cover its short term liquidity
needs. In addition, the Company projects cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet liquidity requirement.

In addition, the Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting year

Particulars Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2-Syears More than§
lcs_§ years

As at 31 March 2019 227.36 - 227.36 - - -

As at 31 March 2018 2,041.27 - 2,041.27 - - -

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest
payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2019 Carrying Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2-5years More than$
amount less years
Non-derivative financial liabilities ' '
Finance lease obligations (including current maturities) 1,320.15 6,509.56 - 427.63 396.90 351.54 5,333.49
Employee related payables 3,256.39 3,256.39 3,256.39 - - - -
Trade and other payables 2,461.48 2,461.48 2,461.48 - - - -
Pre-shipment loans (secured) 6,772.64 6,772.64 - 6,772.64 - - -
Payable in respect of retention money 59.15 59.15 - 59.15 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 - - -
Payable for capital assets 188.84 188.84 - 188.84 - - -
Total 14.059.65 19.249.06 5,717.87 7,449.26 396.90 351.54 5.333.49

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2018 Carrying Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2-5years More than 5§
amount less years

Non-derivative financial liabilities '

Finance lease obligations (including current maturities) 1,618.91 6,998.64 - 472.62 437.51 689.18 5,399.33
Employee related payables 2,983.39 2,983.39 2,983.39 - - - -
Trade and other payables 2,143.75 2,143.75 2,143.75 - - - -
Pre-shipment loans (secured) 4,946.27 4,946.27 - 4.946.27 - - -
Payable in respect of retention money 47.92 47.92 - 47.92 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 - - -
Payable for capital assets 241.35 241.35 - 241.35 - - -
Total 11.982.59 17.362.32 5.127.14 5.709.16 437.51 689.18 5.399.33

Interest payment on variable interest rate loan in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting dates and these amount may change as market interest
changes
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

vi. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest
bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments
will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

a) Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to both fair value interest rate risk as well as cash flow interest rate risk arising both on short-term and long-term floating rate instruments.
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Nominal amount in INR
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 13,395.70 10,607.50
Financial liabilities (1,320.15) (1,618.91)
12,075.55 8,988.59

Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets - -
Financial liabilities (6,772.64) (4,946.27)

(6.772.64) (4,946.27)
Total ’ 530291 4,042.32

b) Sensitivity analysis

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company accounts for investments in government and other bonds as fair value through other comprehensive income. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the
reporting date would have impact on equity.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity by INR 10.30.lakhs after tax (31 March
2018: INR 12.27 lakhs).

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.
Profit or loss
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

31 Mareh 2019

Variable-rate instruments 67.73 67.73
Cash flow sensitivity (net) : 67.73 67.73
31 March 2018

Variable-rate instruments (63.72) 63.72
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (63.72) 63.72

Market price risk

a) Exposure .

The Company's exposure to mutual funds and bonds price risk arises from investmentsheld by the Company and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through profit
and loss and at fair value through other comprehensive income respectively.

To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfoliois done in accordances with the limits set by the
Company. . '

b)Sensitivity analysis

Company is having investment in mutual funds, government bonds, other bonds and investment in subsidiaries.

For such investments classified at Fair value through other comprehensive income, a 2% increase in their fair value at the reporting date would have increased equity by
INR 20.59 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2018: INR 0.32 lakhs ). An equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased equity by INR 20.59 lakhs after tax (31
March, 2018: INR 0.32 lakhs )

For such investments classified at Fair value through profit or loss, the impact of a 2% increase in their fair value at the reporting date on profit or loss would have been an
increase of INR 46.61 lakhs after tax (31-March, 2018: INR 65.26 lakhs ). An equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased profit or loss by INR 46.61
lakhs after tax (31 March, 2018: INR 65.26 lakhs )
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48 Capital Management
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future developmentof the
business. Management monitors the return on capitdl as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it as and when required. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may
pay dividend or repay debts, raise new debt or issue new shares. No major changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net ‘debt' to 'adjusted equity". For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities comprising
interest bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity

The Company capital consists of equity attributable to equity holders that includes equity share capital, retained earnings and long term borrowings.

As at As at

: 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total liabilities 8,092.79 6,565.18
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 13.355.94 13.520.79
Adjusted net debt (a) (5,263.15) (6,955.61)
Total equity (b) 48,397.42 39,971.22
Total equity and net debt (a+b) =¢ ) 43,134.27 33,015.61
Capital gearing ratio (a/c) -12.20% -21.07%

As a part of its capital management policy the Company ensures compliance with all covenants and other capital requirements related to its contractual
obligations.
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49 Segment reporting

A. Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Company's other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.. ’

The Company's board of directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Makers (CODM) since they are responsible for all major decisions in respect of allocation of resources
and assessment of the performance on the basis of the internal reports/ information provided by functional heads. The board examines the performance of the Company based on such internal
reports which are based on operations in various geographies and accordingly, have identified the following reportable segments:

« India

« Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA)
« Asia Pacific (APAC)

« United States of America (USA)

B. Information about reportable segments

Year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars Reportable segments

India EMEA APAC USA Total Segment
Revenue
External revenue 20,013.53 17,445.70 6,174.90 11,569.92 55,204.05
Inter-segment revenue - - - - -
Total Segment Revenue 20,013.53 17,445.70 6,174.90 11,569.92 55,204.05
Segment profit before income tax 3,382.91 1 3,728.17 2,125.77 2,875.40 12,112.25
Segment assets 11,885.87 12,043.87 3,744.71 4,091.87 31,766.32
Segment liabilities 4,569.15 5,253.15 1,044.23 1,810.92 12,677.45
Capital expenditure during the year 653.24 - - - 653.24
Year ended 31 March 2018
Particulars Reportable segments

India EMEA APAC USA Total Segment
Revenue
External revenue 18,071.33 16,598.70 4,104.62 7,177.71 45,952.36
Inter-segment revenue - - - - -
Total Segment Revenue 18,071.33 16,598.70 4,104.62 7,177.11 45,952.36
Segment profit before income tax 2,105,99 4,436.20 1,253.98 1,770.61 9,566.78
Segment assets 11,398.11 10,661.09 2,396.13 3,626.16 28,081.49
Segment liabilities 5,554.03 3,538.65 757.65 749.45 10,599.78
Capital expenditure during the year 1,217.66 - - - 1,217.66

C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended

) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(a) Revenue
Total revenue for reportable segments 55,204.05 45,952.36
Elimination of inter-seg revenue -
Total revenue 55,204.05 45,952.36
(b) Profit / (loss) before tax
Total profit before tax for reportable segments 12,112.25 9,566.78
Unallocated amounts:
- Unallocated income 2,022.86 758.20
- Other corporate expenses 1,623.22 1,231.79
Total profit before tax from operations 12,511.89 9,093.19
(c) Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 31,766.32 28,081.49
Other unallocated amounts 39,152.37 30,665.35
Total assets 70,918.69 58,746.84
(d) Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 12,677.45 10,599.78
Other unallocated amounts 9,843.80 8,175.84
Total liabilities 22,521.25 18,775.62

C. Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
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50 Standards issned but not yet effective

A Ind AS 116: Leases

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The standard also contains enhanced
disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The Company will adopt Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning I April 2019. The Company will apply the standard to its leases, retrospectively,
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application (1 April 2019). Accordingly, the Company will not restate
comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings as on | April 2019. On that date, the Company will recognise a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments. The right-of-
use asset is recognised at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019. In accordance with the standard, the Company will elect not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases and
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.

On transition, the Company will be using the practical expedient provided in the standard and therefore, will not reassess whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at
the date of initial application. The Company is in the process of finalising changes to systems and processes to meet the accounting and reporting requirements of the
standard.

With effect from 1 April 2019, the Company will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of premises and other assets. The nature of expenses
related to those leases will change from lease rent in previous periods to a) amortization change for the right-to-use asset, and b) interest accrued on lease liability.

The Group has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. The
quantitative impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on the consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application is not reasonably estimable as at present.

Ind AS 12 Income taxes: (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over income tax treatments)
The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Company does not expect any impact

. from this pronouncement.

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the entity has to use
judgment, to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered together. The decision should be based on the
approach which provides better. predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the taxation authority will have full knowledge of all
relevant information while examining any amount (3) entity has to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment and the
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates would depend upon the probability. The Company does not
expect any significant impact of the amendment on its financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 19: (plan amendment, curtailment or settlement)

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments,
curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an entity: )

* to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settiement; and
» to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised
because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The Company does not have any impact on account of this
amendment.

51  As at 31 March 2019, the Company has gross foreign currency receivables amounting to INR 15,898.33 lakhs (previous year INR 15,310.75 lakhs). Out of these

receivables, INR 3,124.36 lakhs (previous year INR 4,253.83 lakhs) is outstanding for more than 9 months. As per Foreign Exchange Management (Current Account)
Rules, 2000 read with Master Circular No. 14/ 2014-15 dated 1 July 2014, receipt for export goods should be realized within a period of 9 months from the date of export.
In case of receivables not being realised within 15 months from the date of export, prior approval from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) is required. As per the requirements of
Foreign Exchange Management Act, in one calendar year, the Company is allowed to seek extension for an amount equivalent to 10% of the average collection of the last 3
years only and pursuant to the same, the Company has filed the extension for foreign currency receivables amounting to INR2,248.07 lakhs during the year. For remaining
receivables, the Company is in the process of applying for approval to seek extension of time beyond 9 months from export date. The management is of the view that the
Company will be able to obtain approvals from the authorities for realising such funds beyond the stipulated timeline without levy of any penalties as it had bonafide
reasons that caused the delays in realization.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were
audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (*‘Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 March 2019, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Registered Office:
B S R & Associates (a partnership firm with Registration - 5th Floor, Lodha, Excelus
No. BA69226) converted into B S R & Associates LLP Apollo Mislls Compound
(a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration N.M. Joshi Marg, Mahalakshmi

No. AAB-8182) with effect from Octaber 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011
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Description of Key Audit Matters

Revenue from operations

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has recognised revenue of
INR 62,064.15 Lacs (PY : INR 51,242.78 Lacs)

e Revenue relating to implementation services
from fixed price contracts is recognised based
on percentage of completion method which is
estimated by the Group basis the completion of
milestones and activities agreed with the
customers. Due to complexity and volume of
transactions,  significant judgements are
required to estimate percentage of completion
and determine timing of recognition of revenue.

o Identification of distinct performance obligation
and appropriateness of allocation of contract
revenues to performance obligations.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence:

e Evaluated the design and implementation of
internal controls and tested the operating
effectiveness of internal controls relating to
identification  of  distinct  performance
obligations,  determining  percentage  of
completion, estimation of efforts required to
complete the performance obligation and
allocation of transaction price to performance
obligations.

to test information
technology systems controls relating to
contracts and related information used in
recording and disclosing revenue.

e Involved specialists

.o Selected a sample of continuing and new
contracts using a mix of quantitative and
qualitative criteria and performed the following
procedures:

— Inspecting key terms, including price,
deliverables, timetable and milestones set
out in the contract for selected sample of
contracts and identified the distinct
performance obligations.

— Testing project management tool for
budgeted efforts and related percentage
completion milestones and establishing
accuracy of milestones based on
actualisation of efforts for delivered
projects.

— Testing the details of activities completed
with those stated in the customer contract,
details of activities completed as provided
by the  project manager and
confirmation/acceptance of completion of
such activities by the customer.
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— Consider the terms of the contract,
standard price list of products and
services, and pricing approvals to
determine the transaction price and
allocation of transaction price to
performance obligations.

— Assess the appropriateness of
management’s revenue recognition across
revenue streams for a sample of contracts.

Trade receivables

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has recorded trade receivables of In view of the significance of the matter we applied
INR 25,268.91 Lacs (PY INR 22,201.67 Lacs) the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
o Significant management judgement in | evidence:

determining the recoverable amount of trade

receivables as estimating the recoverable — Obtain an understanding of and assess the

amount involves inherent uncertainty. design and implementation of
management’s key internal controls relating
to debt collection and making provision for
doubtful debts

— Assess, on a sample basis, whether items in
the receivables’ ageing report were
classified within the appropriate ageing
bracket by comparing individual items in
the report with underlying documentation,
which included sales invoices, proof of
delivery and customers sign offs

— Assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by the management for the provision
for doubtful debts with reference to our
understanding of the debtors® financial
condition, the industry in which the debtors
are operating, the ageing of overdue
balances and historical and post year-end
cash receipts from the debtors and by
performing a retrospective review of the
historical accuracy of these estimates.

— Testing the accuracy and underlying data
for “expected credit loss model”

— Comparing, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade receivable
balances with bank statements and relevant
remittance documentation.
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Other Information (or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Anditors’ Report Thereon”)

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the holding Company’s annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit report of other auditors,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
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can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
(company and subsidiaries) to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statéments represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, of which we are
the independent auditors. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of financial information of such entities. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (a) of the section
titled *Other Matters in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other
auditors referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of four (number) subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. 2,918.25 Lacs as at 31 March 2019, total revenues of Rs. 4,852.74 Lacs and net cash flows
amounting to Rs. 440.17 Lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section
(3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the audit
reports of the other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management has converted the financial
statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion
adjustments made by the Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and
affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the
other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors,
as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those

books and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
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d)

statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
31 March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2019 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies during the year ended 31
March 2019.

iv. The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings

in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not
been made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended

31 March 2019.
/
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of subsidiary company incorporated in India which were not audited by us, the
remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company to its
directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 116231 W/W-100024

Rakesh
Place: Gurugram Partner

Date: |5 N oﬂ 2o )19 Membership No. 092212
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph (A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) and such company incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which is its subsidiary
company, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such company incorporated in India which is its subsidiary
company, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
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of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the relevant subsidiary company in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deterjorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to one
(number) subsidiary company, which is company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
report of the auditors of such company incorporated in India.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 116231 W/W-100024

Voupe-

Rakesh Dewan
Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: 15 M Qﬁ 018 Membership No. 092212



Newgen Software 'I‘cchhologies Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indién-Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 6,763.48 6,757.93
Capital work-in-progress 4 8,321.36 1,659.48
Intangible assets 5 130.55 89.56
Financial assets - !
Loans 6 362.45 295.70
Other financial asscts 7 323.18 554.77
Deferred tax assets (net) 32 1,784.06 1,893.13
Income tax assets (net) 8 996.52 1,281.29
Other non-current assets 9 144.65 356.23
Total non-current assets 18,826.25 12,888.09
Current assets
Financial assets =
Investments 10 5,165.86 5,022.07
Trade receivables 11 25,268.91 22,201.67
Cash and cash equivalents ’ 12 15,775.13 14,548.34
Other bank balances 12A 2:139.40 -
Loans 13 44.63 317.27
Other financial assets 14 6,275.55 5,177.19
Other current assets 15 764.69 741.53
Total current assets 55,434.17 48,014.07
TOTAL ASSETS 74,260.42 60,902.16
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 16 6,845.76 . 6,788.41
Other equity 17
Securities premium 9,611.38 9,196.49
Retained eamings . 30,607.26 22,055.71
Others (including items of other corﬁprehensive income) 2,606.,26 2,481.65
Total equity attributable to the owners of the Group 49,670.66 40,522.26
Non-current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 1,028.56 1,316.66
Deferred tax liabilities 32 11.01 11.28
Provisions 19 1,929.02 1,653.37
Total non-current liabilities 2,968.59 2,981.31
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 6,772.64 4,946.27
Trade payables 21 2,160.57 2,292.10
Other financial liabilities 22 3,880.73 3,624.48
Delerred income 23 6,795.27 . 4,943.04
Other current liabilities 24 1,579.39 1,372.04
Provisions 25 432.57 220.66
Total current liabilities 21,621.17 17,398.59
Total liabilities 24,589.76 20,379.90
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 74,260.42 60,902.16
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
As per our report of even date
For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants : For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of A
Firm Registration No.: 116231W / W-100024 Wc Technologies Limited WL S
\e~ YRt el B
Rakesh DewWan Diwakar Nigam T.S.Varadarajan Arun Kumar Gupta ' Aman Mourya
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 092212 DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263115 Membership No: 9975
Place: Gurugram Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: 15 May 2019 Date: 15 May 2019 Date: 15 May 2019 Date: 15 May 2019 Date: 15 May 2019



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of indian Rupees, unless otherwise siated)

Note

Income
Revenue from operations 26"
Other income 27

Total income

Expenses

Employee benefits expense 28
Finance costs : ' 29
Depreciation and amortisation 30
Other expenses 31

Total expenses
Profit before tax

Tax expense 32
Current tax

Deferred tax charge (includes MAT credit enmlemem)

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Debt instruments through other comprehensive income -'net change in fair value
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the company
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share . 33
Nominal value of share INR 10 (31 March 2018: INR 10)

Basic earning per share (INR) '

Diluted earning per share (INR)

Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Associates LLP

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
62,064.15 51,242.78
2,037.97 760.98
64,102,12 52,003.76
28,798.73 24,887.78
853.87 520.68
597.99 580.67
20,493.34 16,601.38
50,743.93 42,590.51
13,358.19 9,413.25
2,993.99 1,630.40
143.31 494.17
3,137.30 2,124.57
10,220.89 7,288.68
(84.78) 12635
29.63 (43.73)
(55.15) 82.62
(2.14) (0.47)
0.75 0.16
84.37 100.20
82,98 99.89
27.83 82.31
10,248.72 7,370.99
10,220.89 7,288.68
10,220.89 7,288.68
27.83 82.31
27.83 82,31
10,248.72 7,370.99
10,248.72 7,370.99
15.01 11.44
14.74 11.15

Chartered Acconntants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm Registration No.: 116231W / W-100024 Newgen Softwa chnnlogles Limited f Wuy)jé
s ' ‘%’W wan ¥ v

Rakesh Dewan Diwakar Nigam T.S.Varadarajan Arun Kumar Gupta Aman Mourya
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 092212 DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263115 Membership No: 9975

Place: Gurugram . Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi " Place: New Delhi Place; New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2019 Date: 15 May 2019 Date: 15 May 2019 Date- 15 May 2019 Date: 15 May 2019



Nuewgen Software Technologies Limited

Cunsulidated Statement of Changes in Eauity for the vear ended 31 Marel 2019

Ml amonnis are in lakhs of Iudion Rupees, unless othenvise stated)

#. Share eapital

Equity share capital

Equity share capital

Tatal share

with differential voting capital
Particulurs Number Amount Number  Amount Amnount
Balance as at 31 March 2017 64.308.030 6.430.80 120 001 6.430.81
ity shares with differential voting rights reclassificd to equily shares during the year 120 0.01 20 .00 -
liores issued during the vear throuch initiol public offer 3.877.551 387.76 - - 387.76
sed during the vear to Neween ESOP Trust 1,050,000 105.00 - - 105,00
lance as at 31 March 2018 69.235.701 6,923.57 - - 6.923.57
Less: Shares hield by trust 1,351,584 135.16 - = 135,16
Total Share capital ns at 31 March 2018 67,884,917 6,788.41 - - 6,788.41
Balance as at I Apsril 2018 . 69.235.701 6.923.57 - - 6.923.57
Add: Issued during the vear to Newgen ESOP Trust 350,000 35.00 35.00
Balance as at 31 March 2019 69.585.701 6.958.57 - - 6.958.57
Less: Shares held by trust 1,128.091 112.81 - = 112,81
Total Share capital as at 31 March 2019 68,457,610 6,845.76 = = 6.845.76
. Other eq
Others Ttems of Other comprehensive income
tor Total attributuble
Particulurs s:::;:::’. '::x:::: to owners of the
r Capital General Capltal | Newgen ESOP Share aptions |Foreign currency| Remeasurement Debt Instruments Group
redemption 5 outstanding translation of defined
. reserve reserve | Trust rescrve® . . " through OCl
rescne reserve! reserve’ benefit Hability
Balance as at 1 April 2017 1,168.69 15,928.02 87.95 1.731.39 0.21 200.22 359.36 (104.54) (54,57 15.17 19.331.90
Total comprehensive income for the vear ended 31 March 2018
Profit for the vear - 7.288.68 - - - - - - - - 7.248.68
Forcign cusreney transhation reserve - . . - - - - 100.20 - - 100.20
Qther compreliensive income/loss) (net of 1x) - - - - - - - - 82.62 ©.3n 82.31
Securities premium on issue of shares to Newaen ESOP Trust 556.50 - - - - - - - - - 556.50
Seeuritics premium on shases issued through initial public offer 9.112.24 - - - - - - - - - %.112.24
Utilized for share jssuc expenses (1.349.15) - - - - - - - - - (1.349.15)
Transactions with owners, recorded divectly in cquity
Addition to Newpen ESOP Trust reserve - - - - - 3143 - - - - 31.43
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividend on equity shares - (964.62) - - - - . - . - (964.62)
Dividend distribution tux on dividend on cauity shares - (196.37) - - - - - - - - (196,30
Emnlovee stock compensation cxpense - - - - - - 225.73 - - . 225.73
“Trunsferred to seeuritics premium aceount on exercise of stock options 193.21 - - - - . (193.21) - - - -
Balance ag at 31 March 2018 9.681.50 22,055.74 87.95 1,731.39 0.21 231.65 391.88 (4.34) 28.08 14.86 34.218.85
K ies premium on shares held by trust (485.00) - - - - - - (485.00)
Bala ¢ 31 Mareh 2018 9,191 22,055.71 87.95 1,731.39 021 231.68 391.88 {4.34) 28.08 14.86 33,733.85
Batance as ot 1 April 2018 9.681.50 22,055.71 87.95 1,731.39 0.21 231.65 391.88 “.3H 28.08 14.87 34.218.87
Total comprehensive income for the venr ended 31 March 2019
Profit for the vear - 10.220.89 - - - - - - - . 10.220.89
Forcien currency trauslation reserve . - . - - - . 84.37 - - 84.37
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - - - - - - - - 55.15)) (139 (56.56)
Securities premium on issuc of shares to Newgen ESOP Trust 185.50 - - - - - - - - - 185.50
Transactions with owners, recorded dircetly in cauity
Addition to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve - - - - - 26.13 . - - - 26.13
Cuntributions by nnd distributions to owners
Dividend on cauity shares - (1.384.7D) - - - - - - - - (1384.71)
Dividend distribution tax on dividend on cauity shares - (284.63) - - - - - - . - (284.63)
Emnlovee stock compensation expense - - - - - - 178.25 - - - 178.25
Loss on sale of debt instrument transfesred to Profit & Loss - - - - . - - - . 332 3.32
Transferred 1o sceurities premium account on exercise of stock options 11093 - - - - - (110.93) - - - -
Bulance as at 3§ March 2019 9,977.93 30,607.26 87.95 1,731.39 0.21 257.78 459.20 80.03 (Z7.l_ﬂ)_| 16.80 43,191.45
Less: Seeurities premium on shares held by trust - s - - - - {366.55)
Bulance s at 31 March 2019 30.607.26 §7.95 1,731.39 0.21 257.78 459.20 §0.03 4(27.1_“)_] 16.80 42,824.90

* Refer Note 17

Summury of sicnificant accounting policies

The uccompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financiul Stalements
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amounis are in lakhs of Indian Rupecs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Liabilities/ provision no longer required written, back
Loss allowance on other financial assets
Unrealised foreign exchange gain
Share based payment - equity settled
Finance costs
Fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL
Dividend income from mutual funds at FVTPL
Profit on sale of mutual funds (net) at FVTPL
Loss on sale of bonds at FVTOCI
Interest income on security deposits at amortised cost
Interest income from government and other bonds at FYTOCI
Interest income from bank deposits and others

Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in loans
Increase in other financial assets
Increase in other assets
Increase in provisions
Increase in other financial liabilities
Increase in other liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (net)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition or construction of property, plant and equij
assets and capital work-in-progress and capital advances

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of mutual funds and bonds
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds and bonds
Interest income from bonds
Interest received on bank deposits and others
Investment in bank deposits (net)

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayment of)/ proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)
(Repayment of)/ proceeds of finance [ease obligation
Proceed from issue of shares through initial public offer
Expenses paid for Initial Public Offer
Proceeds from issue of equity shares under ESOP scheme
Securities premium on issue of shares under ESOP scheme
Dividend paid (including corporate dividend distribution tax)- Equity
Finance cost
Gain on transfer of equity shares by Newgen ESOP trust
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash in hand"
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts
- on deposit accounts with original maturity upto 3 months .

Notes:

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows".

2. Effective | April 2017, the Group adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of fi

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

13,358.19 9,413.25
597.99 580.67
3.89 3.15
1,737.57 659.26
(148.19) (229.75)
22.82 -
(92.08) (49.10)
178.25 225.73
788.90 520.68
(245.75) (25.48)
- (87.86)
- (60.73)
5.07 -
(28.60) G3121)
(127.46) (131.56)
(745.14) (159.32)
15,305.47 10,627.73
(4,478.37) (2,503.86)
23623 (278.74)
(769.54) (2,627.21)
13.70 (33.32)
326.05 31436
303.34 1,616.27
2,009.87 844.50
(161.38) 270.37
12,785.38 8,230.10
(2,564.78) (2,205.62)
10,220.60 6,024.48
(7,191.38) (1,914.11)
16.48 6.96
- (1,683.12)
98.08 1,699.60
74.65 86.21
627.63 73.57
(2,160.85) (70.95)
(8,535.38) (1,801.84)
1,856.00 (259.79)
(298.76) (301.33)
- 9,500.00
- (1,349.15)
57.35 169.35
303.95 640.31
(1,667.57) (1,140.21) .
(788.90) (519.60)
26.13 10.64
(511.81) 6,750.22
N 1,173.41 10,972.86
14,548.34 3,491.88
53.38 83.60
15,775.13 14,548.34
5.67 4.52
6,367.50 6,143.82
9,401.96 8,400.00
15,775.13 14,548.34
tal to eval 1 in

liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closmg
balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption of amendment did not have any material impact on the financial

statements.

1: 4
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the C ial St
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Background

Newgen Software Technologies Limited (‘Newgen’ or ‘the Company’ or ‘the holding Company’) and
its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’) is a
public company domiciled and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in
India. The registered office of the Company is situated at A-6, Satsang Vihar Marg, Qutab
Institutional Area, New Delhi - 110067. The Company raised money by way of initial public offer
during the year ended 31 March 2018 and its shares are listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE)
and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) of India.

The Company is a global software Company and is engaged in the business of software product
development including designing and delivering end-to-end software solutions covering the entire
spectrum of software services from workflow atitomation to Document management to imaging.
Newgen provides a complete range of software that helps automate business processes. Newgen’s
solutions enable document intensive organizations/ industries such as Finance and Banking, Insurance
and government departments to improve productivity through better document management and
workflow implementation. :

2. Basis of Preparation
A. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 were the first consolidated financial
statements that the group had prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 15 May 2019.

Details of the Group’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B. Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated ﬁnanciél statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016

Name of Subsidiaries Country of | Effective
Incorporation Shareholding (%)

Newgen Software Inc. U.S.A 100

Newgen Software Technologies Canada, Canada 100




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Limited

Newgen Software Technologies PTE, Limited Singapore 100
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Limited United Kingdom 100
Newgen Computer Technologies Limited India 100

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a
line-by-line basis by adding the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
after eliminating intra-group balances/transactions and unrealized profits in full in accordance with
Ind AS 110 — “Consolidated Financial Statements”. The amounts shown in respect of reserves
comprise the amount of the relevant reserves as per the balance sheet of the parent company and its
share in the post-acquisition increase/decrease in the reserves of the consolidated entities.

The excess/deficit of cost to the parent company of its investment over its portion of net worth in the
consolidated entities at the respective dates on which investment in such entities was made is
recognized in the consolidated financial statements as goodwill/capital reserve. The parent
company’s portion of net worth in such entities is determined on the basis of book values of assets
and liabilities as per the financial statements of the entities as on the date of investment and if not
available, the financial statements for the immediately preceding period adjusted for the effects of
significant changes.

The financial statements of the foreign non integral subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“foreign non integral operations’) are translated into Indian rupees as follows:-

i. Share capital and opening reserves and surplus are carried at historical cost.
ii. All assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, (excluding share capital, opening
reserves and surplus) are translated using the year-end rates.
iii. Profit and loss items are translated at the respective weighted average rates or the exchange rate
that approximates the actual exchange rate on date of specific transactions.

iv. The resulting net exchange difference is credited or debited to the foreign currency translation
reserve.

C. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated. '

D. Basis of measurement

. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value
of defined benefit obligations

E. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures.
Uncertainty about the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material
adjustment to the carrying value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

e Note 26 — revenue recognition from fixed price contracts of software implementation services:
percentage of completion method to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion
of the total efforts or costs to be expended.

e Note 35 — lease classification: classification of leases under finance Jease or operating lease;

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation-uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2019 is included in the following notes:

¢ Note 3(¢)(iii) —Estimation of Useful lives of intangible and depreciable assets

e Note 28 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

e Note 32 — Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
tax losses carried forward can be used; ' '

e Note 34 —Fair value of share based payments

e Note 46(a) — Impairment of trade receivables and financial assets.

F. Current and non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal
operating cycle.

- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. ‘

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

it is expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle;

- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively.
All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

G. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports
directly to the chief financial officer. The Group regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs
and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is
used to measure fair values, then the Group assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s audit committee.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows.

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
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= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(Unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in.measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

Note 34 — Share-based payment arrangements; and

Note 46 — Financial instruments.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
a. Foreign currency

i. Functional currency
The Group’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Group’s functional currency.

ii. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into INR, the functional currency of the Company, at
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at ‘the date of the
transaction.

b. Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All

other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. '




Newgeﬁ Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost;

- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — debt investment;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as FVTPL:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as FVTPL:

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets. Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management, for instance the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio, frequency,
volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.
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Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and Interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
» terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
» prepayment and extension features; and

Basis the above classification criteria, Group’s investments are classified as below:-

- Investments in government and other bonds have been classified as FVOCI.
- Investments in Mutual funds have been classified as FVTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit or
loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
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such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Der ecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but |
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Group der ecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v.  Derivatives and Embedded derivatives

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host
contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met: ’




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

c. Property, plant and equipment
I. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or
loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

iii. Dep reciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Category of fixed assets Estimated useful life (Years)
Building 60

Plant and equipment 15

Leasehold Improvements* 3

Office equipment** 10

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Computer hardware
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- servers and networks 6
- Computers** 3-5

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Depreciation on addition (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed off).

*Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease term of the respective property
or 3 years whichever is lower.

Leasehold land is amortised over the lease period of 90 years.

**Based on an internal technical assessment, the management believes that the useful lives as given
above best represents the period over which management expects to use its assets. Hence, the useful
life of plant and equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II
of Companies Act, 2013.

d. Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. )

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Group represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life (at present 3-4 years) or the tenure of the respective software
license, whichever is lower. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at
least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from
previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

e. Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
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- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected
life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk. '

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to
‘investment grade’ e.g. BBB or higher as per renowned rating agencies.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss.
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Write-off

'

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

ii. Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks
specific to the asset (or cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised

f. Employee benefits

i.  Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii. Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees of the
Group is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense
is based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting
conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based
on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the
wvesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value
of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for
differences between expected and actual outcomes.
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iii. De fined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recogrised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
future payments is available.

iv. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Group’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving
rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build
up the final obligation. )

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the
market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period
approximating to the terms of related obligations

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit
or loss as past service cost.

v.  Other long-term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any related assets is deducted.

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and
utilize it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since
the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within
twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit.
The Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss
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g. Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if] as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will -
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for. Provisions are reviewed by the
management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. The
provision is based on technical evaluation, historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible
outcomes by their associated probabilities.

Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Group from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.
Before such a provision is made, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract.

h. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, .or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements -

i. Revenue

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115
replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind
AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. The adoption of the standard did not have any material
impact to the financial statements of the Company.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those
products or services.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

i. Sale of License

Revenue from sale of licenses for software products is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer which generally coincides with delivery of
licenses to the customers, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible
return of software sold can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or
managerial involvement with the licenses transferred and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

ii. Rendering of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognized in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress
towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Software Implementation Services

The revenue from fixed price contracts for software implementation is recognized based on
proportionate completion method based on hours expended, and foreseeable losses on the completion
of contract, if any are recognized immediately.

The Company is also involved in time and material contracts and recognizes revenue as the services
are performed.

Digitization services
Revenue from digitization services is recognized as services are rendered to the customer.

Annual Technical services
Revenue from annual technical service and maintenance contracts is recognised ratably over the term
of the underlying maintenance arrangement.

iii. Sa le of vight to use software

Software-as-a-service, that is, a right to access software functionality in a cloud-based-infrastructure
provided by the Company. Revenue from arrangements where the customer obtains a “right to
access” is recognized over the access period.

Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of license is
recognized as the performance obligations are satisfied.

Revenue is recognised, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. This inter alia involves
discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit
terms. Reimbursements of out-of-pocket expenses received from customers have been netted off with
expense.

Amounts received or billed in advance of services to be performed are recorded as advance from
customers/unearned revenue. Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognized based on services
performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms. )




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

iv. Multiple deliverable arrangements

When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single
arrangement, the Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS 115, Revenue from contract with
customer, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The
arrangements with customers generally meet the criteria for considering license for software products
and related services as distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the
Company has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its
relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately
is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. In cases where the company is unable to determine
the standalone selling price, the company uses the expected cost plus margin approach in estimating
the standalone selling price.

Arrangements to deliver software products generally have three elements license, implementation and
Annual Technical Services (ATS). The company has applied the principles under Ind AS 115 to
account for revenues from these performance obligations. When implementation services are
provided in conjunction with the licensing arrangement and the license and implementation have been
identified as two separate performance obligations, the transaction price for such contracts are
allocated to each performance obligation of the contract based on their relative standalone selling
prices. In the absence of standalone selling price for implementation, the performance obligation is
estimated using the expected cost plus margin approach.

Deferred contract costs are incremental costs of obtaining a contract which are recognized as assets
and amortized over the term of the contract.

j.  Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts
to the gross basis.

k. Sale of investments

Profit on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Group and is determined as the
difference between the sales price and the carrying value of the investment.
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1. Leases

i. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At
inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease that it is
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an
amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as payments are made
and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the incremental borrowing rate.

ii. Assets held under leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured initially at an
amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy applicable to similar owned assets.

Assets held under leases that do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership (i.e. operating leases) are not recognised in the Group’s Balance Sheet.

iii. L ease payments

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of
the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and
the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

m. Inc ome tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
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considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
- or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT?’) under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as
current tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT
paid is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried
forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer
exists.

n. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.
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o. Earnings per share (“EPS”)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of the Group by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of commmon and dilutive common equivalent shares
outstanding during the year but including share options, compulsory convertible preference shares
except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

p- Share Capital
Equity Shares

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new
equity shares are recognized as a deduction from equity.

Dividends

The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders, and
interim dividend are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

q. Segment
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker (CODM).

Identification of segments:

All operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors, who have been
identified as the CODM, to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. Refer
note 48 for segment information.

r. . ESOP Trust

The ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by
ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share capital. Consequently, all the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Company,
except for profit / loss on issue of shares to the employees and dividend received by trust which.are
directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

s. Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs
as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.




wegej e T, gies | X
" Notes to the consoliafitea nnancial statements 10t the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

4 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

- Plant and Leaschold Office Furniture and Computer and Capital work-in-

Frechold land Leaschold land* Buildings X . Vehicles - Total
machinery improvements equipment fixtures servers progress#

Balance as at 01 April 2017 4.71 3,523.68 1,125.72 252.00 5.99 13591 348.87 258.39 876.59 6,531.85 1,108.29
Additions during the year - - 602.25 69.86 - 14.58 85.97 113.48 302.61 1,188.75 685.80
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Adjustments during the year
Less: Disposals during the year - - - 9.77 - - 17.07 8.78 - 35.62 134.62
Balance as at 31 March 2018 4.71 3,523.68 1,727.97 312.09 5.99 150.49 417.77 363.09 1,179.20 7,684.98 1,659.48
Additions during the year - - - 33.37 - 94.36 23.77 2.00 411.40 564.90 6,661.88
Adjustments during the year (0.43) - 043 - ) - - (12.43) - 12.43 - -
Less: Disposals during the year - - - 0.97 - - 6.67 20.53 213.07 241.24 -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 4.28 3,523.68 1,728.40 344.49 5.99 244.85 422.44 344.56 1,389.96 8,008.64 8,321.36
Accumulated Depreciation .
Balance as at 01 Aoril 2017 - 39.74 20.98 30.41 5.98 20.73 45.32 35.74 229.83 428.74 -
Charge for the year (refer note 30) - 39.46 21.70 39.78 - 24.05 67.25 48.39 283.20 523.83 -
Adjustments during the year .
Less: Disposals during the year - - - 3.30 - - 16.75 5.46 - 25.51 -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 . - 79.20 42.68 66.89 5.98 44.78 95.82 78.67 513.03 927.06 -
Additions during the year - 39.30 31.41 41.38 - ' 31.65 54.43 46.09 29471 538.97 -
Less: Disposals during the year - - - 0.93 - - 4.52 19.80 195.61 220.87 -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - 118.50 74.09 107.34 5.98 76.43 145.73 104.96 612.13 1,245.16 -
Carrying amount (net)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 4.71 3,444.48 1,685.29 245.20 0.01 105.71 321.95 284.42 666.16 6,757.93 1,659.48
Balance as at 31 March 2019 . 4.28 3,405.18 1,654.31 237.15 0.01 168.42 276.71 239.60 777.82 6,763.48 8,321.36

As at 31 March 2019 properties with a carrying amount of INR 462.67 lakhs (31 March 2018 : INR 472.93 lakhs) are subject to first charge to working capital loans from banks.

*Represents land at Chennai and Noida location taken on finance lease for a term of 99 and 90 years respectively.

# Capital work in progress represents acquistion and further construction of office premises at Noida, Uttar Pradesh and Siruseri, Chennai wherein cost incurred upto 31 March 2019 amounting to INR 5,288.17 lakhs and INR 3,033.18 lakhs
respectively.

5 Intangibles
Computer software

Cost

Balance as at 01 Apr 2017 129.63
Additions during the year 74.61
Balance as at 31 March 2018 204.24
Additions during the year 100.01
Balance as at 31 March 2019 304.25

Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at 01 Apr 2017 59.20
Amortisation (refer note 30) 55.48
Balance as at 31 March 2018 114.68
Additions during the year 59.02
Balance as at 31 March 2019 173.70

Carrying amount (net) '
Balance as at 31 March 2018 89.56
Balance as at 31 March 2019 130.55
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As at
31 March 2019

Loans (unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31 March 2018

Security deposits 362.45

295.70

362.45

295.70

*

As at
31 March 2019

Non-current financial assets - others

As at
31 March 2018

Bank deposits

- pledged with tax authorities 225 2.25
- held as margin money* 229.69 208.24
Interest accrued on deposits 39.64 107.68
Earnest money deposits
Unsecured, considered good 51.60 236.60
Unsecured, considered doubtful 146.03 123.21
Less: Loss allowance for doubtful deposits (146.03) (123.21)
323.18 554.77

*Balances with bank held as margin money INR 229.69 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 208.24 lakhs) represents the margin money on account of guarantees issued

to government customers.
Information about Group's exposure to credit and market risks and fair value measurement is included in Note 46 C.

As at
31 March 2019

Income tax assets (net)

As at
31 March 2018

Advance income tax (net of provision of INR 11,417.14 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 8,622.29 lakhs) 996.52 1,281.29
996.52 1,281.29
Other non-current assets As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Prepaid expenses 87.99 120.50
Capital advances 36.66 235.73
’ 144.65 356.23
Investments As at As at

31 March-2019

31 March 2018

Investments in bonds (unquoted)
Bonds at FVOCI

Investment in government bonds 938.28 959.03
[nvestment in other bonds 645.24 726.46
1,583.52 1,685.49

Investments in mutual funds (unquoted)

Mutual funds at FVTPL

Investment in debt mutual funds 3,582.34 3,336.58
3,582.34 3,336.58
s 5,165.86 5,022.07
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 5,165.86 5,022.07
Aggregate market value of unquoted investments 5,165.86 5,022.07

value measurement is included in Note 46 C.

.Investments in bonds measured at FVOCI have stated interest rates of 7.35% to 10.40%. Information about Group's exposure to credit and market risks and fair

As at
31 March 2019

Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2018

Unsecured
- Considered good 25,268.91 22,201.67
- Considered doubtful 3,933.65 4,139.83
29,202.56 26,341.50
Less: Loss allowance for trade receivables
- unsecured, considered doubtful (3,933.65) (4,139.83)
25,268.91 22,201.67

The Group's exposi;re to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are discussed in note 46 C.
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Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash on hand 5.67 4,52
Balances with banks
- in current accounts*# 6,367.50 6,143.82
Balances with scheduled banks in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months# 9.,401.96 8,400.00
15,775.13 14,548.34

*Current account balances with banks include INR 138.32 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 112.24 lakhs) held at a foreign branch.

# Balance with banks and deposits includes INR Nil and INR 3,289.4 Lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 58.80 lakhs and INR 8,400 lakhs) respectively as unutilized

amounts of the IPO proceeds.

As at
31 March 2019

Other bank balances

As at
31 March 2018

Balances with scheduled banks in deposit accounts

- Maturity with in 12 months 2,139.40 -

2,139.40 -
Current financial assets - Loans As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Loans to employees* 9.90 20.03
Security deposits 34.73 297.24
44.63 317.27

*These are interest bearing loans - repayable within one year given to employees, chargeable at the rate of 12% p.a.
Current financial assets - Others As at As at

(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) 31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Interest accrued on deposits 117.75 0.67
Interest accrued but not due on government bonds 137.34 84.53

Unbilled revenue*
- other than related parties 6,020.46 5,091.99
6,275.55 5,177.19

*Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognized based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms.

During the \year ended 31 March 2019, INR 1,980.10 lakhs of unbilled revenue as of 1 April 2018 has been reclassified to trade receivables upon billing to

customers on completion of milestones.

Other current assets As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Advances to vendors 46.86 41.14
Balances with government authorities* 10.71 153.05
Deferred contract cost 71.37 -
Advance to employees 176.33 221.39
Prepaid expenses 427.91 331.95
Other current assets 25.51 -

764.69 747.53

*Balances with government authorities comprises of Goods and Service tax/ service tax / vat credit receivable.
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(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

16

16 A

16B

16C

Share capital

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Number Number

of shares Amount of shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each 9,80,00,200 9,800.02 9,80,00,000 9,800.00
Equity share capital with differential voting rights of INR 10 each - - 200 0.02
0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each 1,19,99,800 -1,199.98 1,19,99,800 1,199.98

11,00,00,000 11,000.00 11,00,00,000 11,000.00

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Issued, subscribed and paid up Number Number

of shares Amount of shares Amount
Equity share capital of INR 10 each, fully paid up 6,92,35,701 6,923.57 6,92,35,701 6,923.57
Add: Issued during the year to Newgen ESOP Trust 3,50,000 35.00 - -
Balance 6,95,85,701 6,958.57 6,92,35,701 6,923.57
Less : Shares held by Trust 11,28,091 112.81 13,51,584 135.16
Total Share capital 6,84,57,610 6,845.76 6,78.84,117 6,788.41

Reconciliation of shares ding at the b g and at the end at the reporting year

5

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Equity share capital of INR 10 each, fully paid up Number Amount Number Amount
of shares of shares

At the beginning of the year 6,92,35,701 6,923.57 6,43,08,030 6,430.80

Add: Equity shares with differential voting rights reclassified to equity shares during the year - - 120 0.01
38,77,551 387.76

Add: Equity shares issued during the year through initial public offer* - -

Add: Issued during the year to Newgen ESOP Trust 3,50,000 35.00 10,50,000 105.00

At the end of the year 6,95,85,701 6,958.57 6,92,35,701 6,923.57

Less: Shares held by trust 11,28,091 112.81 13,51,584 135.16

Total equity share capital 6,84,57,610 6,845.76 6,78,84,117 6,788.41

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company completed the initial public offer (IPO), pursuant to which 17,331,483 equity shares of INR 10 each were allotted/ allocated, at an issue
price of INR 245 each, consisting of fresh issue of 3,877,551 equity shares and an offer for sale of 13,453,932 equity shares by selling shareholders.
The equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) via ID NEWGEN and BSE Limited (BSE) via ID 540900 on 29 January 2018.

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

In case of equity shares, each equity shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend, if any. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their respective shareholding.

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Equity share capital with differential voting rights (DVR) of INR 10 Number Amount Number Amount
each, fully paid up of shares of shares

At the beginning of the year - - 120 0.01
Less: Re-classification to equity shares during the year - - (120) 0.01)

At the end of the year

Equity shares with differential voting rights :

Each of the shareholder with differential voting rights shall, at all times up to the conversion of Compulsory convertible preference shares into equity shares thercof, were entitled to a fixed
preferential and cumulative dividend of one-hundred percent (0.01%) of the investment amount and resolved to be so distributed as such dividend in respect of each financial year or other
accounting period of the Company, in accordance with applicable law. In addition, the Ascent DVR and the IDGVI DVR shall be entitled to participate in any distribution of the profits of the
Company (including, as regards any dividends declared) on a pro-rata share and as-if-converted basis vis-a-vis the other shareholders.

Expiration of differential rights:

Pursuant to the shareholder subscription agreement dated 31 October 2013, each Ascent DVR and an IDGVI DVR shall be compulsorily converted at no cost to the Investors, into equity
shares in the ratio of 1:1 at any time as may be determined by the investors in their sole discretion. Upon conversion of the Ascent DVR and the IDGVI DVR , such differential voting and

dividend rights, as mentioned above, on the shares held by each of the investors have automatically expired.
During the year ended 31 March 2018 each equity share with DVR has been re-classified into equity shares.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares of INRI0 each, fully paid up held by:

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Number Number

of shares % Holding of shares % Holding
- Mr. Diwakar Nigam 1,84,22,406 26.47% 1,84,22,406 28.65%
- Mr. T.S. Varadarajan 1,50,09,3006 21.57% 1,50,09,306 23.34%
- Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam 79,68,906 11.45% 79,68,906 12.39%
- Mrs. Usha Varadarajan 45,28,320 6.51% 45,28,320 7.04%
- Malabar India Fund Limited 45,64,262 6.56% - -

Shares reserved for issue under Employee stock option plan
Terms attached to stock options granted to employees are described in note 34 regarding share based payments,

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date,

A Bonus shares have been issued for which no cash has been received. The bonus shares has been issued out of security premium

For the year

For the year

For the year

For the year

For the year

ended ended ended ended ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Equity shares of INR 10 each - - - - 4,39,74,000
Equity share capital with differential voting rights of INR 10 each - - - - 100
0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each - - - - 85,78,525

B. Equity shares have been issued uj

For the year

sl D\h}!% exercise price has been received in cash.
For the year
ended
31 March 2019

For the year

For the year

For the year

ended ended ended ended
. 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Equity shares of INR 10 each 0 10,50,000 - ,45,000

3,50, oo
d‘.l

~
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17 Other equity . As at As at
. 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Securities premium 9,611.38 9,196.49
Retained earnings 30,607.26 22,055.71
Capital redemption reserve . . 87.95 87.95
Capital reserve 0.21 0.21
General reserve 1,731.39 1,731.39
Newgen ESOP trust reserve 257.78 231.65
Share options outstanding reserve 459,20 391.88
Other comprehensive income 69.73 38.57
42,824.90 33,733.85
Particulars As at As at
' 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Securities Premium (refer note (i) below)
Balance as at beginning of the year . 9,681.49 1,168.69
Securities premium on issue of shares to Newgen ESOP Trust 185.50 556.50
Securities premium on shares issued through initial public offer - 9,112.24
Utilized for share issue expenses ' - (1,349.15)
Transferred to securities premiwmn account on exercise of stock options 110.94 193.21
Balance as at 3] March 2019 9,977.93 ' 9,681.49
Less: Securities premium on shares held by trust 366.55 485.00
Balance as at end of the year . 9,611.38 9,196.49
Retained carnings (refer note (ii) below)
Balance as at beginning of the year 22,055,71 15,928.02
Profit for the year 10,220.89 7,288.68
Dividend on equity shares (1,384.71) (964.62)
Dividend distribution tax on dividend on equity shares . (284.63) (196.37)
Balance as at end of the year _ 30,607.26 22,055.71
Capital redemption reserve .
Balance as at beginning of the year 87.95 87.95
Balance as at end of the year 87.95 : 87.95
Capital reserve
Balance as at beginning of the year 0.21 0.21
Balance as at end of the year 0.21 0.21
General reserve
Balance as at beginning of the year 1,731.39 1,731.39
Balance as at end of the year 1,731.39 1,731.39
Newgen ESOP Trust reserve (refer note (iii) below)
Balance as at beginning of the year ' 231.65 200.22
Addition to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve 26.13 3143
Balance as at end of the year 257.78 231.65
Share options outstanding reserve (refer note (iv) below)
Balance as at beginning of the year 391.89 359.37
Employce stock compensation expense 178.24 22573
Transferred to securities premium account on exercise of stock options (110.93) (193.21)
Balance as at end of the year 459.20 391.89
Other comprehensive income (refer note (v) below)
R rement of defined benefit liability
Balance as at beginning of the year . 28.05 (54.57)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) (55.15) 82.62
Balance as at end of the year 2110 28.05
Debt instruments through other comprehensive income
Balance as at beginning of the year 14.87 15.18
Other comprehensive income/{loss) (net of tax) (1.39) (0.31)
Loss transferred to Profit & Loss during the year 3.32 -
Balance as at end of the year .16.80 1487
Foreign currency translation reserve (refer note (vi) below)
Balance as at beginning of the year (4.34) (104.54)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - 84.37 100.20
Balance as at end of the year . 80.03 (439

(i) Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(1) Accumulated balances of profits over the years after appropriations for general reserves and adjustments of dividend

(iiif) The ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share capital, Consequently, all the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except for profit / loss on issue of shares to the employees and dividend received by trust
which are directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

(iv) The Company has established various equity-settled share-based payment plans for certain employees of the Company. Refer to note 34 for further details on these plans.

(v) Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for analysis of other comprehensive income, net of tax.

(vi) Foreign currency translatin reserve comprises of all exchange differences arising from translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries into functional and presentational currency.
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(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Notes

Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

18

19

20

21

Non-current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Non-current maturities of finance lease obligations (secured)*

* Finance lease obligations

1,028.56

1,316.66

1,028.56

1,316.66

The Group had obtained leasehold land from "Yamuna Expressway Industrial Development Authority (YEIDA)' during the year ended 31 March 2016. The lease
term of leasehold land is 90 years with equated monthly payment beginning from the month subsequent to the commencement of lease.

Finance lease obligations are payable as follows:

As at 31 March 2018

Present value of .

. R Future minimum

Particulars minimum lease Interest
lease payments
—__payments

Less than one year 302.25 170.37 472.62
Between one and five years 750.26 376.43 1,126.69
More than five years 566.40 4,832.93 5,399.33

As at 31 March 2019

Present value of

Future minimum

Particulars minimum Jlease Interest
lease payments

payments
Less than one year 291.59 136.04 427.63
Between one and five years 459.74 288.70 748.44
More than five years 568.82 4,764.67 5,333.49
Effective interest rate on above borrowings is 11.73%.
Non-current provisions As at As at

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 28)
- provision for gratuity
- provision for compensated absences

Current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Loans from banks
Pre-shipment loans (secured)*

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

1,495.50 1,266.07
433.52 387.30
1,929.02 1,653.37

As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

6,772.64

4,946.27

6,772.64

4,946.27

#Pre-shipmentloans carry interest rate @ LIBOR plus margin which varied from 3.21% to 4.39% per annum. These are secured by first pari passu charge over all
future and present stock, book debts and equitable mortgage of land and building with carrying amount of INR 462.67 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 472.93 lakhs) and

are repayable within 180 days from the date of disbursement.

Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30-45 days
a) Refer note 37 for disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)

b) The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 46

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

2,160.57

2,292.10

2,160.57

2,292.10
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22

23

24

25

Current financial liabilities - Others

Current maturities of finance lease obligations
Employee related payables

Payable in respect of retention money

Earnest money deposits

Payable for capital assets

Deferred income

Advance billing
Advance from customers

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
291.59 302.25
3,340.15 3,031.96
59.15 47.92
1.00 1.00
188.84 241.35
3,880.73 3,624.48
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
6,736.52 4,917.82
58.75 25.22
6,795.27 4,943.04

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recognized revenue of INR 4,917.82 lakhs arising from opening advance billing as of I April 2018.

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable
Advance from employees for exercise of share options
Other current liabilities

Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 28)
- provision for gratuity

- provision for compensated absences

- provision for income tax

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1,571.63 1,365.28
2.82 6.76
4.94 -
1,579.39 1,372.04
As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

244,76 141.39
101.70 69.89

86.11 9.38
432.57 220.66
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26 Revenue from operations

Sale of products - softwares
Sale of services

- Implementation

- Scanning

- AMC/ATS

- Support

- Saa$ revenue

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

15,378.46 13,695.06
14,449.45 13,504.14
1,936.25 1,950.01
10,361.22 8,471.52
17,546.56 12,486.87
2,392.21 1,135.18
62,064.15 51,242.78

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an
explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not

discloséd the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where :
(i) The performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less.

(if) The revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where invoicing is

on time and material basis.

Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic

revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfiedas at 31 March 2019, other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned

above is INR Nil.

27  Other income

Interest income under the effective interest rate method:
- on security deposits at amortised cost

- government and other bonds at FVOCI

Interest income on fixed deposits

Other interest income

Profit.on sale of mutual funds (net) at FVTPL
Dividend income from mutual funds at FVTPL

Fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL
Liabilities / provision no longer required written back
Net foreign exchange fluctuation gain

Bad debt recovered

Miscellaneous income

28  Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note i below)
Expenses related to compensated absences (refer note ii below)
Share based payment - equity settled

Expense related to defined benefit plan (refer note iii below)
Staff welfare expenses

(i) Defined contribution plans:

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
28.60 31.21
127.46 131.56
676.42 159.32
68.72 1.10
- 60.73
- 87.86
24575 2548
148.19 229.75
71527 -
15.04 -
12.52 33.97
2,037.97 760.98

For the year ended

31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

26,757.19 23,026.60
767.10 672.31
275.35 244.17
178.25 225.72
311.88 272.39
508.96 446.59

28,798.73 24,887.78

The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of the employee salaries in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund, which is a
defined contribution plan. The amount recognised as an expense towards contributionto provident fund for the year aggregated to INR 767.10 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR
672.31 lakhs). The amount recognised as an expense towards employee state insurance aggregated to INR 2.27 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 3.52 lakhs).

(ii) Compensated absences:
The Principal assumptions used in determining the compensated absences benefit obligation are as given below:

Discounting rate (p.a.)
Future salary increase ( p.a.)

(iii) Defined Benefit Plan:

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

7.66%
7.00%

7.80%
7.00%

Gratuity scheme - This is an unfunded defined benefit plan and it entitles an employee, who has rendered atleast 5 years of continuousservice, to receive one-halfmonth's

salary for each year of completed service at the time of retirement/exit.

i) On normal retirement / early retirement / withdrawal / resignation: As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with vesting period of 5 years of service.

ii) On death in service: As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting period.

Gratuity payable to employeein case (i) and (ii), as mentioned above, is computed as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 except the Group does not have any limit on

gratuity amount

"The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity

Credit Method.

were carried out as at
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A. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,407.46 1,278.47
Benefits paid (71.28) (62.57)
Current service cost 202.10 178.42
Interest cost 109.78 93.97
Past service gain
Acturial (gains) losses recognised in OCI

change in demographic assumptions 21.21 6.31)

change in financial assumptions 22.48 (44.89)

experience adjustments 48.51 (29.64)
Balance at the end of the year 1,740.26 1,407.45
B. i) Expense recognised in profit and loss

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current service cost 202.10 178.42
Interest cost 109.78 93.97
Past service gain . -
Total expense recognised in profit and loss 311.88 272.39

ii) Remeasurements recoginsed in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Acturial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation 92.20 (80.83)
Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 92.20 (80.83)

C. Defined benéfit obligations
i. Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date.

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Discount rate 7.66 7.80
Salary escalation rate 7.00 7.00
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 100% of IALM

(2006 - 08) (2006 - 08)
ii. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one

: 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.50% moveinent) (54.53) (63.05) 68.33
Future salary growth (0.50% movement) 58.16 68.53 (63.79)

Sensitivitiesas to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump

sum benefit on retirement.

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the

assumptions shown.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Group's financial

statements as at balance sheet date:

Net defined benefit asset
Total employee benefit asset
Net defined benefit liability

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Liability for gratuity 1,740.26 1,407.46
Liability for compensated absences 519.63 457.19
Total employee benefit liabilities 2,259.89 1,864.65
Non-current:

Gratuity 1,495.50 1,266.07
Compensated absences 433.52 387.30
Current:

Gratuity 244.76 141.39
Compensated absences 86.11 69.89
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29

30

31

Finance costs

Finance cost on finance lease obligations
Interest expense on packing credit
Other finance costs

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5)

Other expenses

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional fees

Outsourced technical services expense

Cloud hosting services

Payment to auditors*

Electricity and water

Advertising and sales promotion

Membership and subscription fee

Brokerage and commission

Communication costs

Software and license maintenance
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility
Donation

Operation and maintenance

Printing and stationery

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss allowance on trade receivables

(net of adjustment for bad debts written off of INR 1,952.57 lakhs (previous year INR 2,449.59 lakhs)

Loss allowance on other financial assets
Security charges

Net foreign exchange fluctuation loss
Loss on settlement of forward contract
Loss on sale of bonds (net) at FVOCI
Miscellaneous expenses

*Payment to auditors

As auditor:

- Statutory audit fee

- Limited review fee

- Others

- Reimbursement of expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
166.99 205.49
561.23 236.16
125.65 79.03
853.87 520.68
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
538.97 525.19
59.02 55.48
597.99 580.67
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1,904.77 1,704.41
283.40 313.59
254.82 195.94
6,770.69 5,960.98
2,512.88 2,298.18
397.72 -
426.22 -
69.67 61.18
354.17 329.93
764.92 520.68
375.07 619.72
749.66 749.68
509.03 456.81
511.92 305.58
125.64 107.31
34,74 32.00
578.09 490.77
671.87 671.05
3.89 3.15
1,737.57 659.26
22.82 -
229.03 200.79
24.45 35.81
36.30 -
5.07 -
1,138.93 884.57
20,493.34 16,601.38
39.50 40.00
22.50 7.50
3.40 11.43
4.27 2.25
69.67 61.18
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Particulars

32 Income Tax
A. The major components of income tax (expense) / income are recognised in profit or loss

For the year ended
31 March'2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Tax expense 2,883.80 1,630.40
MAT credit entitlement - (86.97)
Tax expense for earlier years 110.19 64.50
Deferred tax (credit) 143.31 516.64
Total 3,137.30 2,124.57
Recognised in Other comprehiensive income
Tax impact on
- Re-measurement on defined benefit plan 29.63 (43.73)
- Fair value of Debt instruments through other comprehensive income 0.75 0.16
Total 30.38 (43.57)
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit before tax 13,358.19 9,413.25
Tax using the Group's tax rate 34.94% 4,667.89 34.61% 3,257.74
Tmpact of different rate in each jurisdiction -0.65% (87.25) -1.20% (112.66)
Effect of deduction under section 10AA of the Income tax Act, 1961 -11.62% (1,552.24) -11.18% (1,052.22)
Effect of exp per ly disallowed under the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.13% 17.50 0.18% 16.89
Effect of income exempt/ taxed on lower rate -0.17% (23.27) -0.56% (53.04)
Others 0.03% 4.49 0.04% 3.36
Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss for the current year 22.66% 3,027.11 21.88% 2,060.06
C. Deferred tax assets (nef)
Deferred tax relates to the following: Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI:
Deferred tax assets (gross)
Investments at fair value through OCI - -
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) 14.21 -
o) 14.21 -
Deferred tax liabilities
Investments at fair value through OC! ’ 712 7.87
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) - 1542
b 712 23.29
Deferred tax related to items recognised in statement of profit and loss:
Deferved tax liabilities {(gross) .
Property, plant and equipment 308.30 251.36
Others 84.54 11.11
© 392.84 262.47
Deferred tax assets (gross)
Loss allowance on other financial assets 51.03 42.63
Loss allowance on trade receivables 1,258.97 1,381.66
Provision for employee benefits 772.84 667.62
@ 2,082.84 2,091.91
©=(d)-(c) 1,690.00 1,829.44
Deferved tax assets (net) (e) +(a) - (b) 1,697.09 1,806.15
MAT credit entitlement 86.97 86.97
Total Deferred tax assets (net) 1,784.06 1,803.12
As at Asat

D. Deferred tax liability (net)
Deferred tax liabilities (gross)
Property, plant and equipment
Total Deferred tax linbility (net)

D. Movement in temporary differences

31 March 2019

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

11.01

11.28

11.01

11.28

Balance as at

Recagnised in profit

Recognised in OCI during

Balance as at

Particutars 31 March 2018 | °F 108 during FY FY 2018-19 31 March 2019
2018-19
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Property, plant and equipment 11.28 (0.26) 11.01
Total 11,28 {0.26) - 11.01
Deferved tax assets (net)
Investments at fair value through OCI (7.87) - 0.75 (7.12)
Remeasurement of defined benefit linbility (asset) (15.42) - 29.63 14.21
Property, plant and equipment (251.36) (56.93) - (308.30)
Loss allowance on other financial assets 42.64 8.39 - 51.03
Loss allowance on trade receivables 1,381.66 (122.70) - 1,258.97
Provision for employee benefits 667.62 105.21 - 772.84
Others (11.01) (73.53) - {84.54)
Total 1,806.16 (139.56) 30.38 1,697.09
31 March 2018
P'Ir(icl.xlnrs Balance as at }?:;’i:l:l?r;::gp";‘?‘ Recognised in OCI during Balance as at
S 31 March 2017 FY 2017-18 31 March 2018
2017-18
Deferred tax liabilities (net).
Property, plant and equipment (15.19) - 391 - (11.28)
Total (15.19) 3.91 - (11.28)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Investments at fair value through OCI (8.03) - {0.16) (7.87)
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (as 28.31 - 43.73 (15.42)
Property, plant and equipment (314.72) 63.36 - (251.36)
Loss allowance on other financial assg 42.64 - 42.64
Loss allowance on trade receivables 2,082.54 (700.87) - 1,381.66
Provision for employee benefits 530.78 136.84 - 667.62
Others 887 (19.88) - (11.01)
Total 2,370.39 (520.55) 43.57 1,806.26

==
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33

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity

shares into equity shares.

i. Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Group

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Group 10,220.89 7.288.68

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Group for basic and diluted earnings 10,220.89 7,288.68

ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Opening balance of equity shares 6,78,84,117 6,23,13,086
Effect of equity shares issued through initial public offer - 6,58,652
Effect of share options exercised : 1,91,325 7,39,355
Weighted average number of shares for basic EPS 6,80,75,442 6,37,11,093
Effect of dilution:

Add: Equity shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust with respect to options not exercised by ’ 12,55,390 16,33,736
employees but outstanding

Weighted average number of shares for diluted EPS 6,93,30,832 6,53,44,829

Basic and Diluted earnings per share

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
INR INR

Basic earnings per share 15.01 11.44
Diluted earnings per share 14.74 11.15
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(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

34 Share-based payment arrangements:

A. Description of share-based payment arrangements
i. Share option programmes (equity-settled)

“The Group had established Employees Stock Option Plan-1999 (ESOP 1999) and Employees Stock Option Plan-2000 (ESOP 2000) in the year 1999-00 and 2000-01 respectively,
administered through 'Newgen Employees Trust* (ESOP Trust) set-up for this purpose, for a total grant of 293,160 and 600,000 options respectively, at an Exercise Price of INR 80 and INR
40 per option respectively, to the employees of the Group. Under the terms of the original plans, these options are vested on a graded vesting basis over a maximum period of Four (4) years
from the date of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or full, within a maximum period of five and four years respectively from the date of last vesting, During the year ended 31
March 2000, 586,320 equity shares were issued to ESOP Trust as bonus shares in the ratio of 1:2. Further, 4,093,350 equity shares were also issued to ESOP Trust as bonus shares in the ratio
of {:5 during the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Board of Directors of the Group time to time extended the maximum exercise period for ESOP 1999 and ESOP 2000. During the ye’ar 2014-15, the Board of Directors of the Group in
their meeting dated 24 December 2014 extended the maximum exercise period for ESOP 1999 and ESOP 2000 to five years and four year respectively from the last vesting date or 31
December 2018, whichever is later.

The Group established Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheine' 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) in the year 2014-15, administered through a new Trust ‘Newgen ESOP Trust'. The maximum
numbers of grants under this Scheme shall be limited to 3,783,800 option with underlying equity shares of the Group. Pursuant to the scheme, during the year 2014-15, the Group has granted
3,653,525 options at an exercise price of INR 63 per option, to the employees of the Group. Under the terms of the plans, these options are vested on a graded vesting basis over a maximum
period of four years from the date of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or full, within a maximum period of five from the date of last vesting, Further, during the year 2017-18
grant of options 353,000, 130,000, and 79,250 through grant I1, IIl and IV on 1 Jul 2017, 1 Sep 2017 and [ Oct 2017 respectively under the same scheme and with same vesting conditions
was made.

The ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share capital. Consequently, all the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except for profit / loss on issue of shares to the employees and dividend received by trust which are
directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

Following table represents general terms of the grants for the ESOP outstanding as on 31 March 2019, during the year 2018-19 there were no grants made.

ESOP schemes Grant Date No. of Options Exercise Price Weighted average Vesting Period’
Qutstanding remaining life

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Jan-2015 11.00,564 INR 63.0( 4.76 4 years,

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Jul-2017 2,76.235 INR 63.0( 7.25 4 years

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Sep-2017 1,26,500 INR 63.0( 7.42 4 years

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Oct-2017 54,225 INR 63.04 7.51 4 years

B. Measurement of fair values

i. Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes formula. Service and non-market performance conditions attached to the arrangements were not
taken into account in measuring fair value. )

The requirement that the employee has to remain in service in order to purchase shares under the share purchase plan has been incorporated into the fair value at grant date by applying a
discount to the valuation obtained. :

The fair value of options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment plans are as follows:

Particulars Newgen Employees| Newgen Employees Stock
' Stock Option Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen
Scheme 2014 ESOP 2014)
(Newgen ESOP
No Grant Grant IL III and IV
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Fair value of options at grant date , - 100.23
Share price at grant date - 134.53
Exercise price - 63.00
Expected volatility (weighted-average) - 55.59%
Expected life (weighted-average) : - 9 years
Expected dividends - 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) - 6.78%
C. Reconciliation of outstanding share options
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share option programmes were as follows.
Employees Stock Option Plan-1999 (ESOP 1999) Number of Weighted average Number of options Weighted average
options exercise price exercise price

31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2018

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year - - 52,600 INR 4.45
Add: Options granted during the year - : - . - -
Less: Options lapsed during the year - ) - - -
Less: Options exercised during the year - - 52,600 INR 4.45
Options outstanding as at the year end - - - INR 4.45

Exercisable as at year end
Weighted - average contractual life
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Employees Stock Option Plan-2000 (ESOP 2000) Number of Weighted average  Number of options Weighted average
options exercise price exercise price
31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year - - 3,86,700 INR 6.67

Add: Options granted during the year - - - -
Less: Options lapsed during the year - - -
Less: Options exercised during the year - - 3,86,700 INR 6.67
Options outstanding as at the year end - - . - INR 6.67
Exercisable as at year end : - B .

Weighted - average contractual life - -

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) Number of Weighted average Number of options Weighted average
options exercise price exercise price

31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year 22,43,483 INR 63.00 30,61,209 INR 63.00
Add: Options granted during the year - - 5,62,550 INR 63.00
Less: Options lapsed during the year 1,12,466 INR 63.00 1,26,096 INR 63.00
Less: Options exercised during the year 5,73,493 INR 63.00 12,54,180 INR 63.00
Options outstanding as at the year end 15,57,524 INR 63.00 22,43,483 INR 63.00
Exercisable as at year end 11,22,797 4,45,616
Weighted - average contractual life 5.51 years 6.38 years

C. Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

For details on the employee benefits expense, refer note 28
35 Operating leases

A. Leases as lessce -
a) The Group has taken various cancellable and non-cancellable leases for office premises and residential accommodation for some of its employees. The amount recognised in statement of
profit and loss and future minimum Jease payments and payment profile of non-cancellable operating leases are as under:

1
i. Future minimum lease payments
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases were as follows.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Less than one year 991.78 1,334.90
Between one and five years . 1,251.78 2,152.94
More than five years - -
2,243.56 3,487.84
ii. Amounts recognijsed in profit or loss
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Lease expense . ) 1,904.77 1,704.41
1,904.77 1,704.41
oy




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

36 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)*

31 March 2019 31-March 2018
a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for net 23.45 759.70
of advances. tangible assets**
b. Amount of Income tax expense for financial year 2015-16 for which assessment has been completed 179.00 -

and against which company has filed an appeal.

* The Company is committed to operationally, technically and financially support the operations of its certain subsidiary companies.

** For other commitments — Non-cancellable operating, and finance leases, refer Note 35 and 18

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was a judicial pronouncement with respect to provident fund. It is not currently clear whether the interpretation set out in the
pronouncement has retrospective application. If applied retrospectively, the interpretation would result in an increase in contributions payable by the Company for past and
future periods for certain of its employees. There are numerous interpretative challenges concerning the retrospective application of the judgment. Due to such challenges
and a lack of interpretive guidance, and based on legal advice the Company has obtained on the matter, it is currently impracticable to reliably estimate the timing and
amount of any payments the Company may be required to make. Pending further clarity on the subject, the Company has made a provision of INR 9.65 lakhs for the period
subsequent to the date of judgment.

37 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises
should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as on 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 has been made in the financial statements based on information
received and available with the Group. Based on the information currently available with the Group, there are no dues payable to Micro and Small Suppliers as defined in
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

38 After the reporting date the following dividend were proposed by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of shareholders at Annual General Meeting; Accordingly,

the dividends have not been recognised as liabilities. Dividends would attract corporate dividend tax when declared.

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
' 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Final dividend of INR 3.00 per share (31 March 2018: INR 2/-) 2,087.57 1,384.71

Corporate dividend tax 429.20 283.94

39 Utilization of CSR expenses

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the following is the detail of corporate social responsibility expenses incurred by the Company: Gross amount to be spent
by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019 is INR 125.38 lakhs (previous year INR. 106.13 lakhs). Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2019:

Particulars Amount already spent] Amount to be spent Total

i) For purpose mentioned as under 124.90 0.74 125.64

The areas for CSR activities are promoting education, health care, sanitation, digital literacy and livelihood enhancement and participation on SOS Children's Village
Projects in Faridabad. The funds were primarily utilized through the year on the following activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

40 The Group has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of

4

—

the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company has got the updated
documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the holding
company has also started availing services from its overseas subsidiaries in accordance with the transfer pricing methodology under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. The management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the
financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

During the previous year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has completed the Initial Public offer, pursuant to which 17,331,483 equity shares having a face value of
INR 10 each were allotted/allocated, at an issue price of INR 245 per equity share, consisting of fresh issue of 3,877,551 equity shares and an offer for sale of 13,453,932
equity shares by selling shareholders. The gross proceeds of fresh issue of equity shares from IPO amounted to INR 9,500.00 lakhs. The Company's share of fresh issue
related expenses was INR 1,349.15 lakhs, which had been adjusted against Securities Premium. As at 31 March 2018, the proceeds were unutilised and had been
temporarily invested/ deposited in cash and cash equivalents including fixed deposits and bank account (Refer note 12).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the proceeds were partially utilised for the purchase of unfurnished office premises near Noida-Greater Noida Expressway, Uttar
Pradesh and for general corporate purpose amounting to INR 5,145.00 lakhs (Refer note 4) and INR 24.40 lakhs respectively. As at 31 March 2019, the remaining
proceeds has been temporarily invested/ deposited in cash and cash equivalents including fixed deposits and bank account (Refer note 12).

42 For the year ended 31 March 2019, projected utilisation of IPO proceeds was INR 6,950.40 lakhs, however the Company has utilised only INR 5,169.40 lakhs. The Board

of Directors in their meeting held on [5 May 2019, approved to seek the approval of shareholders through Postal Ballot for variation/deviation in the utilisation ofl IPO
proceeds amounting to INR 1,781.00 lakhs. :

43 Dividend remittances in foreign currency:’

Particulars For the year |For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Year to which the dividend relates 2017-18 2016-17
Amount remitted during the year (INR in lakhs) - 77.21
Number of non-resident shareholders - 2
Number of shares on which dividend was due - 51,47,340
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44 Details of current Investments (refer note 10)

Particulars

Number of units

Amount in lakhs

as at as at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Investment in debt mutual funds - FVTPL
Reliance Short Term Fund- Direct Growth Plan 6,34,842 6,34,842 22891 213.85
[CICI Prudential Short Term Plan Direct Growth 8,60,077 8,60,077 346.96 322.56
1IFL Dynamic Bond Fund Reg- Growth 14,42,783 14,42,783 212.99 200.83
Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Retail Plan - Growth-Direct S 1L122 11,122 466.63 425.20
Aditya Birla Sun Life Credit Risk Fund- Gr. Direct 32,02,906 32,02,906 454.78 426.14
1CICI Prudential Credit Risk Fund -Direct Plan- Growth 21,85,596 21,85,596 459.30 425.63
UTI Credit Risk Fund- DirectPlan- Growth 26,17,879 26,17,879 471.48 442.00
Kotak Income Opportunities Fund- Monthly Growth 21,94,751 21,94,751 472,75 440.56
L and T Credit Risk Fund Direct Plan -Growth 21,57,674 21,57,674 468.53 439.81
Investment in government bonds - FYOCI
8.40% IRFC 15YRS SR2A 18022029 (18-Feb-2029) 40,000 40,000 455,66 466.42
7.35% NHAI LTD Tax free Bond 15YRS SR2A Annual (11-Jan-2031) 45,000 45,000 482.62 492,61
Investment in Other Bonds - FVOCI
IIFL Wealth Finance Limited SR-A1-June2022 LOA 13JU22 FVRSI0LAC 20 20 242,94 220.42
11% Bank of India Perpetual Bond - 10 - 99.83
Vijaya Bank SR-II 10.4 LOA Perpetual FVRS10LAC (27-Mar-2050) 40 40 402.30 406.21

5,165.86 5,022.07
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45 Related party transactions
A. Transactions with Key Management Personnel

A number of key management personnel, or their related parties hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or significant influence over those
entities.

Compensation of the Group's key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post - employment defined benefit plan(see note 28)
Executive officers also participate in the Group’s share option plan as per the conditions laid down in that scheme (see note 28 and note 34).

List of key management personnel and their relatives

Diwakar Nigam - Managing Director

T.S. Varadarajan - Whole Time Director

Priyadarshini Nigam - Whole Time Director

Arun Kumar Gupta - Chief Financial Officer :
Virender Jeet - Senior Vice President (Sales and Marketing/Product)
Surender Jeet Raj - Senior Vice President (HR/Operations)

Tarun Nandwani - Senior Vice President (Business Management)
Usha Varadarajan - Relative of Whole Time Director - T.S. Varadarajan
Shubhi Nigam - Relative of Managing Director

Aman Mourya - Company Secretary

Sonali Nigam - Relative of Managing Director

Key management personnel compensation

Transaction value . Balance payable
For the year ended For the year ended As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Salaries, wages and bonus* 1,062.83 895.35 348.95 262.12
Diwakar Nigam 174.90 160.35 8.42 8.24
T.S. Varadarajan 83.70 76.32 6.06 4.53
Priyadarshini Nigam 40.84 39.28 - 2.79
Arun Kumar Gupta 116.13 75.88 37.87 26.93
Virender Jeet 187.03 150.19 112.47 82.59
Surender Jeet Raj 166.52 134.22 96.86 70.59
Tarun Nandwani 176.18 121.41 86.40 65.72
Shubhi Nigam 84.15 59.38 - - -
Aman Mourya 13.88 10.06 0.87 0.73
Sonali Nigam 19.50 68.26
Dividend paid (excluding dividend
distribution tax) - 933.99 699.32 - -
Diwakar Nigam 368.45 276.34 - -
T.S. Varadarajan 300.19 ¢ 22514 - -
Priyadarshini Nigam 159.38 119.53 - -
Arun Kumar Gupta 1.09 0.66 - -
Virender Jeet . . 498 3.24 . - -
Surender Jeet Raj 455 3.16 - -
Tarun Nandwani 4.77 3.33 - -
Usha Varadarajan . 90.57 67.92 - -
Aman Mourya 0.01 -
Share-based payments 57.17 50.46 - -
Arun Kumar Gupta 30.18 7.51 - -
Virender Jeet - 16.33 - -
Surender Jeet Raj - 14.82 - -
Tarun Nandwani 26.12 11.80 - -
Aman Mourya 0.87 -

* excludes provision for gratuity and compensated absence, as these are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for the Group as a whole and includes share-based
payments.
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46 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value fxirarchy.

) Carrying amount Fair value
31 March 2019 Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value .
Investments in debt mutual funds 10 3,582.34 - - 3,582.34 3,582.34 - - 3,582.34
Investments in bonds 10 - -1,583.52 - 1,583.52 1,583.52 - - 1,583.52
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other non-current financial asset 7 - - 323.18 323.18 - - - -
Trade receivables 11 - - 25,268.91 25,268.91 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - - 15,775.13 15,775.13 - - - -
Other bank balances 12A - - 2,139.40 2,139.40 - - - -
Loans 6and 13 - - 407.08 407.08 - - - -
Other financial assets 14 - - 6,275.55 6,275.55 - - - -
3.582.34 1.583.52 50.189.25 55,355.11 5,165.86 - - 5,165.86
Financial liabilities
Financial laibilities not measured at fair value
Long-term maturities of finance lease obligations (secured) 18 - ’ - 1,028.56 1,028.56 - 1,028.56 - 1,028.56
Short term borrowings 20 - - '6,772.64 6,772.64 - 6,772.64 - 6,772.64
Trade payables 21 - - 2,160.57 2,160.57 - - - - -
Other financial liabilities 22 - - 3.880.73 3,880.73 - 291.59 - 291.59
- - 13,842.50 13,842.50 - 8,092.79 - 8.092.79
Carrying amount Fair value
31 March 2018 Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost  Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value :
Investments in debt mutual funds 10 3,336.58 - - 3,336.58 3,336.58 - - 3,336.58
Investments in bonds 10 - 1,685.49 - 1,685.49 1,685.49 - - 1,685.49
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other non-current financial asset 7 - - 554.77 554,77 - - - -
Trade receivables 11 - - 22.201.67 22.201.67 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - - 14,548.34 14,548.34 - - - -
Other bank balances 12A - - - - - - - -
Loan 6and 13 - - 612.97 612.97 - - - -
14 - - 5,177.19 5,177.19 - - - -
3,336.58 1,685.49 43,094.94 48,117.01 5,022.07 - - 5,022.07

‘
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Carrying amount Fair value

31 March 2018 S Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities '
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value -
Long-term maturities of finance lease obligations (secured) 18 - - 1,316.66 1,316.66 - 1,316.66 - 1,316.66
Short term borrowings 20 - - 4,946.27 4,946.27 - 4,946.27 - 4,946.27
Trade payables 21 - - 2,292.10 2,292.10 - - - -
Other financial liabilities . 22 - - 3,624.48 3,624.48 - 302.25 - 302.25

: - - 12,179.51 12,179.51 - _ 6.565.18 - 6,565.18

The fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other current financial assets, current borrowings, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts,
due to their short-term nature. Fair value of bank deposits included in non-current other financial assets are equivalent to their carrying amount, as the interest rate on them is equivalent to market rate.

B. Measurement of fair values
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurementdectly or indirectly observable inputs
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

Particulars Fair value Valuation technique Significant Inter-relationship between
hierarchy unobservable unobservable inputs and fair vale
inputs measurement

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Investments in debt mutual funds Level 1 Market valuationtechnique: Investments traded in active markets are determined by reference]Not applicable Not applicable
to quotes from the financial institutions; for example: Net asset value
(NAYV) for investments in mutual funds declared by mutual fund house, quoted price of]
equity shares in the stock exchange etc.

Financial assets measured at FYTOCI

Investments in bonds Level 1 Market valuation technique: The fair value of bonds is based on direct and market observabldot applicable Not applicable
inputs.

Financial liabilities measured at Amortised cost ) .

Long term borrowings Level 2 Discounted cash flow: The valuation model considers the present value of expected paymerj#yot applicable Not applicable

Short term borrowings Level 2 discounted using a risk adjusted discount rate '

There have been no transfers in either direction for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
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C. Financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

i. Risk management framework

The Group’s board of directors has framed a Risk Management Policy and plan for enabling the Group to identify elements of risk as contemplated by the provisions of the
Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and “procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular
and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises partially from the
Group's receivables from customers, loans and investment in debt securities. The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. The Group
has credit policies in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. .

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting was:

Particulars Asat31 March 2019  As at 31 March 2018
Trade receivables 25,268.91 22201.67
Loans 407.08 - 612,97
Cash and cash equivalents 15,775.13 14,548.34
Other bank balances 2,139.40 -
43,590.52 . 37,362.98

To cater to the credit risk for investments in mutual funds and bonds, only high rated mutual funds/bonds are accepted.

The Group has given security deposits to vendors for rental deposits for office properties, securing services from them, government departments. The Group does not expect
any default from these parties and accordingly the risk of default is negligible or nil.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenues are typically unsecured and derived from revenue earned from customers primarily located in India, USA, EMEA and APAC.

Credit risk has always been ménaged by the Group through credit approval, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which
the Group grants credit term in normat course of business. Credit limits are established for each customers and received quarterly. Any sales/services exceeding these limits
require approval from the risk management committee.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairent that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivables. The management uses a simplified approach for the
purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics,
including whether they are an individual or legal entity, industry and existence of previous financial difficulties, if any.

Trade and other receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence

the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The management establishes an allowance
for impainnent that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date.

The Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows

Carrying amount

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
India 9,300.31 7.994.27
USA 4322.87 4219.37
EMEA 8,536.22 7,967.17
APAC psSoc/, 3.109.51 2,020.86
Q_‘U (?D 25.268.91 22201.67
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The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables from individual customers:

As at 31 March 2019

Gross carrying amount

Weighted- average loss

Loss allowance

Credit-impaired

rate
0-3 months past due 19,538.87 2.85% 557.61 No
3-6 months past due 1,438.59 7.84% 112.80 No
6-9 months past due 986.14 16.21% 159.82 . No
9-12 months past due 752.30 23.84% 179.36 No
12-15 months past due 3,488.12 37.12% 1,294.68 No
15-18 months past due 1,172.46 39.98% 468.72 No
18-21 months past due 528.05 48.37% 255.39 No
21-24 months past due 284.37 57.95% 164.78 No
above 24 months past due 1,013.66 73.05% 740.48 No
29,202.56 3,933.65

As at 31 March 2018

Gross carrying amount

Weighted- average loss

Loss allowance

Credit-impaired

rate
0-3 months past due 17,111.83 4.03% 690.01 No
3-6 months past due 3,555.53 11.37% 404,32 No
6-9 months past due 1,300.53 20.34% 264.53 No
9-12 months past due 444.07 31.38% 139.34 No
12-15 months past due 534.59 35.89% 191.85 No
15-18 months past due 427.32 41.70% 178.19 No
18-21 months past due 238.08 44.49% 105.93 No
21-24 months past due 306.07 57.04% 174.59 No
above 24 months past due 2.423.47 82.16% 1,991.07 No
26,341.49 4,139.83
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Movement in allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables

Impairment in trade

_ receivables
Balance as at 01 April 2017 5,976.64
Impairment loss recognised 659.26
Amounts written off ’ 2,496.07
Balance as at 31 March 2018 . . 4,139.83
Impairment loss recognised : 1,737.57
Amounts written off . 1,943.75
Balance as at 31 March 2019 . 3,933.65

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditionsas well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting-period.

Debt securities

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities an only with counterpartiesthat have a credit rating A to AA+ from renowned rating
agencies."

The Group monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ratings. For its investment in bonds, Group also reviews changes in government bond yields
together with available press and regulatory information about issuers

The exposure to credit risk for debt securities at FVTOCI and at FVTPL is as follows:-
’ Net carrying amount

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
India . 5,165.86 - 5,022.07
Other regions - -
5,165.86 5,022.07

Basis experienced credit judgement, no risk of loss is indicative on Group's investment in mutual funds and government bonds.

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of INR 15,775.13 lakhs at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: INR 14,548.34 lakhs) and other bank balances of INR 2,139.40
lakhs as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: Nil). The cash and cash equivalentsare held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated AA- to AA+,
based on renowned rating agencies. ’ :
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
fii. Liquidity risk

Liquidityrisk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficientliquidity to meet its liabilities when they
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable [osses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group's primary sources of liquidity include cash and bank balances, deposits, undrawn borrowings and cash flow from operating activities. As at 31 March 2019,
the Group had a working capital of INR 33,813.00 Iakhs (31 March 2018: INR 30,615.47 lakhs) including cash and cash equivalentof INR 15,775.13 lakhs (31 March
2018: INR 14,548.34 lakhs) and other bank balances of INR 2,139.40 (31 March 2018: Nil) and current investments of

INR 5,165.86 lakhs (31 March 2018; INR 5,022.07 lakhs).

Consequently,the Group believesits revenue, along with proceeds from financing activities will continue to provide the necessary funds to cover its short term liquidity
needs. In addition, the Group projects cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet liquidity requirement.

In addition, the Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting year

Particulars Total 2 months or 2-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years  More than 5 years
less

As at 31 March 2019 ) 227.36 - 227.36 - - -

As at 31 March 2018 2,041.27 - 2,041.27 - - -

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated
interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2019 ’ Carrying Total 2 months or 2-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years  More than 5§ years
amount less
Non-derivative financial liabilities '
Finance lease obligations (including current maturities’ 1,320.15 6,509.56 - 427.63 396.90 351.54 5,333.49
Employee related payables - 3,340.15 3,340.15 3,340.15 - - - -
Trade and other payables 2,160.57 2,160.57 2,160.57 - ® - -
Pre-shipment loans (secured) 6,772.64 6,772.64 - 6,772.64 - - -
Payable in respect of retention money 59.15 59.15 - 59.15 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 - - -
Payable for capital assets 188.84 188.84 - 188.84 - - -
Total 13.842,50 19.031,91 5.500,72 7.449.26 396,90 351,54 533349

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2018 Carrying Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2-Syears  More than 5 years
amount less
Non-derivative financial liabilities '
Finance lease obligations (including current maturities’ 1,618.91 6,998.64 - 472.62 437.51 689.18 5,399.33
Employee related payables 3,020.61 3,020.61 3,020.61 - - - -
Trade and other payables 2,292.10 2,292.10 2,292.10 - - - -
Pre-shipment loans (secured) 4,946.27 4,946.27 - 4,946.27 - - -
Payable in respect of retention money 47.92 4792 - 47.92 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 - - -
Payable for capital assets 24135 24135 - 241.35 - - -
Total 12,168.16 17.547.89 5,312.71 5,709.16 437,51 689,18 539933

Interest payment on variable interest rate loan in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting dates and these amount may change as market
interest changes :
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Group’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments.Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term
debt. We are exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of our investments. Thus, our exposure to market risk
is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currency. The objective of market risk management is to avoid
excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

v. Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposed to
currency risk on account of its borrowings, receivables and other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupee.

The foreign currency exchange management policy is to minimize economic and transactional exposures arising from currency movements against the US dollar, Euro, GBP,
Canadian dolar, Abar Emirates Dhiram, Saudi Riyal, Singapore dollar and Japanese Yen. The Group manages the risk by netting off naturally-occurring opposite exposures
wherever possible, and then dealing with any material residual foreign currency exchange risks if any.

Exposure to currency risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are as below:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
. Amount in foreign | Amount in local | Amount in foreign | Amount in local
Particulars Currency
currency currency currency currency
(lakhs) (1akhs) (lakhs) (lakhs)
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables*
usD 204,78 14,178.50 207.57 13,500.77
AED 7.74 14594 5.22 92.64
CAD 4.84 251.43 8.41 424 .85
EUR 0.90 70.12 1.55 125.00
GBP 6.35 574.78 0.69 63.71
SAR 2.12 39.09 7.41 128.63
SGD 11.52 584.41 334 165.90
| Bank balance-Dubai AED 7.33 138.32 6.28 111.39
Bank balance-EEFC USD 19.80 1,369.49 0.74 4831
Travelling Advance to employees USD 1.32 89.36 2.12 136.97
AED 1.15 2201 1.45 25.75
CAD 0.09 5.16 0.07 3.85
GBP 0.03 2.90 0.02 2.13
SGD 0.16 8.68 0.07 3.38
EURO 0.08 6.83 0.10 8.53
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
UsSD (21.40) (1,468.91) (13.41) (869.67)
SGD (0.90) (45.82) - -
SAR (0.78) (14.20) (0.31) (5.36)
AED . (0.17) (3.16) - -
EURO - . - 0.01) (0.64)
Short term borrowings USD (97.91) (6,772.64) (76.05) (4,946.27)

* gross of loss allowance

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollar, Euro, GBP, Canadian dolar, Abar Emirates Dhiram, Saudi Riyal, Singapore dollar and
Japanese Yen at reporting date would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 For the year ended 31 March 2018

Effect in thousands of INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
1% movement
usp 73.73 (73.73) 78.43 (78.43)
EURI 0.77 0.77) 1.32 (1.32)
GBP! 4.96 (4.96) 0.66 (0.66)
CADI 2.56 (2.56) 428 (4.28)
SGDI 592 (5.92) 1.69 (1.69)
AEDI : 3.03 (3.03) 2.30 (2.30)
SARI 0.25 (0.25). 1.23 (1.23)
89.92 (89.92)
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
vi. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed

interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest
bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

a) Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to both fair value interest rate risk as well as cash flow interest rate risk arising both on short-term and long-term floating rate
The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:
Nominal amount in INR
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 13,401.45 10,613.25
Financial liabilities (1,320.15) (1.618.91)
12,081.30 8,994.34

Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets . - -
Financial liabilities (6,772.64) (4.946.27)

(6,772.64) (4,946.27)
Total ‘ ' 5,308.66 4.048.07

b) Sensitivity analysis

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

AN .
The Group accounts for investments in government and other bonds as fair value through other comprehensive income. Therefore, a change in interest rate at
the reporting date would have impact on equity.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity by INR 10.30 lakhs after tax (31
March 2018: INR 12.27 lakhs).

Cash flow sensitivity mml_vsis Jfor variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) prof' it or loss by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Profit or loss
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

31 March 2019

Variable-rate instruments 67.73 67.73
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 67.73 67.73
31 March 2018 .

Variable-rate instruments (63.72) 63.72
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (63.72) 63.72

Market price risk

a) Exposure

The Group's exposure to mutual funds and bonds price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classified in the balance shéet as fair value through
profit and loss and at fair value through other comprehensive income respectively.

To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordances with the limits set
by the Group. .

b)Sensitivity analysis

Group is having investment in mutual funds, government bonds and other bonds.

For such investments classified at Fair value through other comprehensive income, a 2% increase in their fair value at the reporting date would have increased
equity by INR 20.59 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2018: INR 0.32 lakhs ). An equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased equlty by INR 20.59
lakhs after tax (31 March, 2018: INR 0.32 lakhs )

For such investments classified at Fair value through profit or loss, the impact of a 2% increase in their fair value at the reporting date on profit or loss would
have been an increase of INR 46.61 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2018: INR 65.26 lakhs ). An equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased profit
or loss by INR 46.61 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2018: INR 65.26 lakhs )
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47 Capital Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it as and when required. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may pay dividend or
repay debits, raise new debt or issue new shares. No major changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities comprising interest
bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity

The Group capital consists of equity attributable to equity holders that includes equity share capital, retained earnings and long term borrowings.

As at . As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total liabilities 8,092.79 6,565.18
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 15,775.13 14,548.34
Adjusted net debt (a) (7,682.34) (7,983.16)
Total equity (b) . 49.670.66 40,522.26
Total equity and net debt (a+b)=c 41,988.32 32.539.10
Capital gearing ratio (a/c) -18.30% -24.53%

As a part of its capital management policy the Group ensures compliance with all covenants and other capital requirements related to its contractual obligations.
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48 Segment reporting

A. Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eamn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions

with any of the Group's other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group's board of directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Makers (CODM) since they are responsible for all major decisions in respect of allocation of resources and
assessment of the performance on the basis of the internal reports/ information provided by functional heads. The board examines the performance of the Group based on such internal reforts which

are based on operations in various geographies and accordingly, have identified the following reportable segments:
= India

» Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA)

= Asia Pacific (APAC)

= United States of America (USA)

B. Information about reportable segments
Year ended 31 March 2019

Parti Reportable segments
articulars

India EMEA APAC USA Total Segment
Revenue
External revenue 20,013.53 17,742.56 6,889.85 17,418.21 62,064.15
Inter-segment revenue R - - - - -
Total Segment Revenue 20,013.53 17,742.56 6,889.85 17,418.21 62,064.15
Segment profit before income tax 3,389.00 3,754.31 2,273.50 3,526.63 12,943.44
Segment assets 11,904.61 12,156.06 4,450,97 6,596.41 35,108.05
Segment liabilities 4,571.86 5,336.58 1,505.70 3,331.82 14,745.96
Capital expenditure during the year 653.24 - 2.70 8.97 664.91
Year ended 31 March 2018
Particulars Reportable segments

India EMEA APAC Usa Total Segment

Revenue 2L
External revenue 18,071.33 16,840.19 4,431.09 11,900.17 51,242.78
Inter-seg| revenue - - - .- -
Total Segment Revenue 18,071.33 16,840.19 4,431.09 11,900.17 51,242.78
Segment profit before income tax 2,104,27 4,430.81 1,259.56 2,089.39 9,884,03
Segment assets 11,411.31 10,690.11 2,697.44 5,437.93 30,236.79
Segment liabilities 5,555.87 3,674.85 945.07 2,027.94 12,203.73
Capital expenditure during the year 1,217.66 - - 44,97 1,262.63

C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended 31

Particulars March 2019

(a) Revenue

Total revenue for reportable segments 62,064.15 51,242.78
Elimination of inter-segment revenue -
Total revenue 62,064.15 51,242.78
(b) Profit / (loss) before tax
Total profit before tax for reportable segments 12,943.44 9,884.03
Unallocated amounts:
- Unallocated income 2,037.97 760.98
- Other corporate expenses (1,623.22) (1,231.76)
Total profit before tax from operations 13,358.19 9,413.25
(c) Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 35,108.05 30,236.79
Other unallocated amounts 39,152.37 30,665.35
Total assets 74,260.42 60,902.14
(d) Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 14,745.96 12,203.73
Other unallocated amounts 9,843.80 8,175.84
Total liabilitics 24,589.76 20,379.57

D. Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
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49 Standards issued but not vet effective

A Ind AS 116: Leases

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind
AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The Group will adopt Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning 1 April 2019. The Group will apply the standard to its leases, retrospectively, with the
cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application (1 April 2019). Accordingly, the Group will not restate comparative
information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on 1 April
2019. On that date, the Group will recognise a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments. The right-of-use asset is recognised at its
carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019, In
accordance with the standard, the Group will elect not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-terin leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.

On transition, the Group will be using the practical expedient provided in the standard and therefore, will not reassess whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of
initial application. The Group is i the process of finalising changes to systems and processes to meet the accounting and reporting requirements of the standard.

With effect from 1 April 2019, the Group will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of premises and other assets. The nature of expenses related to
those leases will change from lease rent in previous periods to a) amortization change for the right-to-use asset, and b) interest accrued on lease liability.

The Group has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its consofidated financial statements but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. The
quantitative impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on the consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application is not reasonably estimable as at present.

Ind AS 12 Income taxes: (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over income tax treatments)

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Group does not expect any impact from this
pronouncement. ’

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the entity has to use judgment, to
determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered together. The decision should be based on the approach which
provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the taxation authority will have full knowledge of all relevant information while
examining any amount (3) entity has to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment and the determination of taxable profit (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates would depend upon the probability. The Group does not expect any significant impact of the amendment
on its financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 19: (plan amendment, curtailment or settlement)

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments
and settlements. The amendments require an entity:

» to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

» to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised
because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1,2019. The Group does not have any impact on account of this amendment,

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has gross foreign currency receivables amounting to INR 15,898.33 lakhs (previous year INR 15,310.75 lakhs). Out of these
receivables, INR 3,124.36 lakhs (previous year INR 4,253.83 lakhs) is outstanding for more than 9 months. As per Foreign Exchange Management (Current Account)
Rules, 2000 read with Master Circular No. 14/2014-15 dated I July 2014, receipt for export goods should be realized within a period of 9 months from the date of export.
In case of receivables not being realised within 15 months from the date of export, prior approval from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) is required. As per the requirements of
Foreign Exchange Management Act, in one calendar year, the Company is allowed to seek extension for an amount equivalent to 10% of the average collection of the last 3
years only and pursuant to the same, the Company has filed the extension for foreign currency receivables amounting to INR 2,248.07 lakhs during the year. For remaining
receivables, the Company is in the process of applying for approval to seek extension of time beyond 9 months from export date. The management is of the view that the
Company will be able to obtain approvals from the authorities for-realising such funds beyond the stipulated timeline without levy of any penalties as it had bonafide reasons
that caused the delays in realization.
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51 Additional information pursuant to Para 2 of general instruction for the preparation of consolidated financial statement

Name of the enterprise

Net assets (Total assets-Total liabilities)

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
As % of consolidated As % of consolidated
net assets Amount net assets Amount
Parent
Newgen Software Technologies Limited 97.44% 48,397.42 98.64% 39,971.22
Indian Subsidiary .
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 0.13% 62.53 0.14% ’ 57.91
Foreign Subsidiaries ’ .
Newgen Software Inc. USA. 2.71% 1,344.27 2.11% 856.68
Newgen Software Technologies UK Ltd. 0.42% 207.50 0.48% 192.69
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Ltd. 0.29% 145.56 0.25% 103.13
Newgen Software technologies PTE Ltd 0.73% 361.49 0.51% 205.41
Adjustment arising out of consolidation -1.71% (848.11) -2.13% (864.77)
Total 100% 49,670.66 100% 40,522.26

Name of the enterprise

Share in profit and loss after tax

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
As % of consolidated Amount As % of consolidated Amount
profit and loss profit and loss
Parent
Newgen Software Technologies Limited 93.76% 9,583.08 98.03% 7,145.40
Indian Subsidiary
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 0.05% 4.62 0.06% 4.22
Foreign Subsidiaries : . : :
Newgen Software Inc. USA. 4.10% 419.38 2.09% 151.98
Newgen Software Technologies UK Litd. 0.21% 21.13 -0.07% (4.99)
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Ltd. 0.42% 42.46 0.24% 17.13
Newgen Software technologies PTE Ltd 1.27% 130.00 0.06% 4.50
Adjustment arising out of consolidation 0.20% 20.22 -0.41% (29.57)
Total 100% 10,220.89 100% 7,288.68
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